
THE ST A TE OE NEW HAMPSHIRE

DCT
Department ofTramportation

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTA TION

William Cass, P.E. David Rodrigue, P.E.

Commissioner Assistant Commissioner

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council April 11, 2025

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT) to pay an amount not to exceed
$1,570,600 to Advance Transit, Inc., (Vendor 166573), Wilder, Vermont, project #68058C, to procure
three (3) replacement ADA-accessible transit buses and maintenance equipment, effective upon Governor
and Council approval through June 30, 2029. 93% Federal Funds, 7% Capital General Funds.

Funding for this agreement is available in the Fiscal Year 2025 budget:

04-96-96-964010-2916 FY 2025

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $ 1,456,600

04-096-096-960030-1340

19-146:1XVIF - Public Transit

034-500161 New Construction $ 114,000

EXPLANATION

NHDOT has approved a request from Advance Transit, Inc. (AT) for Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) §5339 Bus & Bus Facilities Program funding to replace three (3) ADA-accessible public transit
buses to be used in the provision of public transit services, as well as, vehicle maintenance equipment,
including one (1) maintenance bay lift, FMLive fuel master system upgrade, maintenance shop floor
refurbishment, and one (1) replacement bus shelter. These capital purchases will allow AT to maintain
and improve its transit system, vehicle fleet, and transit facility to better serve the traveling public.

AT is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation in the Upper Valley
region of New Hampshire and Vermont. Approximately 80% of AT's ridership and services are in New
Hampshire and 20% are provided in Vermont. Vermont and New Hampshire entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with AT on September 30, 1993, to share the cost of transit
services, and that MOU remains in effect.

NHDOT released a public notice on December 4, 2024, announcing the availability of funding from
the FTA §5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program. NHDOT solicited proposals from public transit agencies
and private non-profit organizations engaged in public transportation services. Eight (8) transit agencies
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applied by the January 22, 2025, deadline, and all eight transit agencies were awarded funds for eligible
projects. A table summarizing the requests and their award status is provided further below.

A project evaluation committee consisting of three Department staff from the NHDOT Bureau of Rail
and Transit reviewed and scored the 5339 applications submitted for projects. The evaluation committee
members included the Public Transportation Administrator, Fred Butler, Transportation Specialist, Mike
Pouliot, and Transit Grants Coordinator, Paula Devens. Each reviewer evaluated and scored applications
based on the criteria indicated in the application materials.

Projects meeting NHDOT's criteria for inclusion in its public transit funding plan will be awarded in
separate amounts for the aforementioned transit systems.

AT will use §5339 for the procurement of the following capital purchases:

•  Three (3) ADA accessible public transit buses, replacing vehicles that will have met their
minimum useful life at the time of delivery and that will allow AT to operate at optimal
efficiency, thus providing the quality service that their riders have come to expect.

• Miscellaneous capital projects to include (1) maintenance bay lift, FMLive fuel master system
upgrade, maintenance shop floor refurbishment, and one (1) replacement bus shelter. These
awarded projects are eligible FTA capital expenses and will support AT in providing safe and
efficient public transit in their service area.

The evaluation matrix and scores are provided below for reference:

!

The applicant conveys how this addresses state priorities identified in
Statewide Strategic Transit Assessment's policy priorit}' recommendations
(as listed in Appendix A: NHDOT Policy*). Applicants need to adequately
illustrate how the project will benefit the agency's transportation
program/services, including how it is necessar>' for continued and/or
improved operations.

30%

2

The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to
operate service and conduct ongoing maintenance associated with this
capital request.

20%

3

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and
effectiveness, measured in ridership, service miles and hours, and costs.
New applicants must demonstrate the abilit>' to measure performance and
achieve goals.

20%

4

The applicant complies with relevant Federal and state regulations and has
a histor>' of compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. New
applicants must demonstrate sufficient resources for compliance.

15%

5

The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project,
financial and othenvise, on the part of citizens and local government, e.g.,

letters of support, willing to provide local match above minimum required,
etc.

15%

Totals 100%



i  Transit Svstemi Scorei Status 'Award/Contracting, Action
University of New Hampshire

(3) 12-14 CNG Cutaway
Buses

100% Awarded Transferred for direct

administration \vith FTA

University of New Hampshire

(2) Accessible Minivans 100% Not

Awarded *

To be funded via FTA §5307
instead of this program

VNA @ HCS

(2) 12x2 Gasoline
Cutaway Buses

100% Awarded Statewide Purchase &

Propert}' Contract

Community Action Program 3elknap-Merrimack County, Inc.

(1) 12x2 gas cutaway 100% Awarded Statewide Purchase &

Property Contract

Community Action Program 3elknap-Merrimack Count}', Inc.

(1) 16x2 gas cutaway 100% Awarded Statewide Purchase &

Property Contract

Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation

(2) 31x2 diesel 35+foot
transit buses

100% 1 Awarded Transferred for direct

administration with FTA

Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation

(1) 10x2 gas cutaway 100% Awarded Transferred for direct

administration with FTA

Nashua T ransit System

(2) CNG, 16x2 cutaway

buses

100% Awarded Transferred for direct

administration with FTA

Nashua Transit System

(1) 12x2 gas or EV
cutaway bus

100% Awarded Transferred for direct

administration with FTA

Southwestern Community Services

(2) 12x2 cutaway buses 100% Awarded Statewide Purchase &

Property Contract

Advance Transit

(1) 10x2 gas Ford Transit
350

100% Awarded G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

(2) 26 diesel <30-foot
transit buses

100% Awarded G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

(1) Maintenance Lift 95% Awarded G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

(1) Kilton Transit Hub
shelter

92% Awarded G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

FMLive (fuel master)
fueling system upgrade

92% Awarded G&C Agreement (pending)

Tri-County Community Action Program

Dispatching software -
Statewide

88% Awarded G&C Agreement (pending)



Advance Transit

Shop, parts room and 87% Awarded G&C Agreement (pending)
garage floor repair

Tri-County Communit>' Action Program

New windows and exterior 73% Awarded G&C Agreement (pending)
door

Advance Transit

(I) ICilton Transit Hub 69% Not Project not approved
Interactive Transit Sign Awarded *

Exp.

Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation

(2) Bus Shelters with 0% Not Project withdrawn by
benches and solar lights Awarded ♦ COAST

The subject Advance Transit project funding is as follows:

SFY 2025

FTA § 5339 Solicitations

Total

Project
Costs

Federal

FTA 5339
FTA%

State

Capital
Match

(General
Funds)

Local

Match

(1) Kilton Transit Hub shelter
$15,000 $12,000 80% $1,500 $1,500

(1) FMLive (fuel master)
fueling system upgrade $17,000 $13,600 80% $0 $3,400

(1} Maintenance Lift
$45,000 $36,000 80% $0 $9,000

(1) Shop, parts room and garage

floor repair $150,000 $120,000 80% $0 $30,000

(1) 10 pax. gas Ford Transit 350
$150,000 $127,500 85% $1 1,250 $1 1,250

(2) 26 pax. diesel <30-foot
transit buses $1,350,000 $1,147,500 85% $101,250 $101,250

Total Funding 51,727,000 51,456,600 5114,000 5156,400

Total Grant Funds 51,570,600

The total project cost is $1,727,000, which includes $1,456,600 (84%) FTA §5339 funds, $114,000 (7%)
State Capital Match (General Funds) and $156,400 (9%) Local match. This contract reflects only the
Federal and State portions of the project for a maximum contract amount of $ 1,570,600.

Advance Transit will procure the equipment following Federal procurement guidelines, and the
Department will hold title to the buses until their disposition. Advance Transit will be identified as the
owner on the vehicle title, and NHDOT will be identified as the lien holder. Advance Transit will pay the
vendor(s) for the vehicles and will submit an invoice for Federal and State reimbursement to the
Department.



In the event that Federal Funds are unavailable, additional General Funds will not be requested to support
this program.

This agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. The NHDOT has
verified that the necessar)' funds are available. Copies of the fully executed agreement are on file at the
Secretar)' of State's Office and the Department of Administrative Services Office, and subsequent to
Governor and Council approval will be on file at NHDOT.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.

Commissioner

Attachments



FORM NUMBER G-J (version 11/2021)

Subject:
SFY 2025 FTA 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities

GRANT AGREEMENT

The Slate of-New-Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
1  Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IdentificatioD and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Nanie

NH Department of Transportation

1.2. State Agency Address
PO Box 483, 7 Hazen Dr. Concord, NH
03302-0483

1.3. Grantee Name

Advance Transit, Inc.

1.4. Grantee Address

120 Billings Farm Road. PO Box 1027 Wilder. VT
05088-1027

1.5 Grantee Phone #

802-295-1824x201

i .6. Account Number

04-96-96-964010-2916-0
72-500575

1.7. Completion Date

June 30, 2029

1.8. Grant Limitation

$1,570,600

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Fred Butler, Public Transportation Administrator, Bureau
of Rail & Transit

1. ID. State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2565

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signl
any public meeting requirement for acceptance of th

ng this form we certify that we have complied with
s grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.11. (SMntep'Si^ature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signpr 1

/>PAMS CAe-P'«cc, mc«'T/wcr piefcrotL

Grant^ Signature 2
N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signer 2

N/A.

Grantee Signature 3
N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

N/A

1. li3 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

Michelle Winters, Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit

Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

A6si£tiahAttomeyG»aefel,On;

1.16. Approval by Governor and (Council (if applicable)

By: On:

2..SC0PE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee identified in
block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as '^e Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and rhore particularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHEBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to
as "the Project").
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

6.

7.

7.1.

12.

8.

8.1

8.2.

8.3

9.

9.1

yoVERED. Excepl os olhcrwise specifically provided for herein, ihc
Grantee shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire.
F.PFF.CTIVF. DATE; COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, sliall become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon
signature by the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.14 CUie Effecti>'c Date").
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all repoi^
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as Ihe Completion Dale").
r.RANT AMOUNT: LfMITAflbN ON AMOUNT; VOUCHERS;
PAVhfENT.

The Glint Amount is identified and more particularly descnbed in EXHIBfr C,
attached hereto. . rraprr-
The manner of. and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C, and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as detqmined by ̂ e State, and as
limited by subpara^ph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount The State shall withhold fiom the amount otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparegrapb 5.3 those siims required, or
permitted, to be withheld purmant to N.H. RSA 80:7 throuBh 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Grantee for the Project. The State shall have no liabiliries to
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount
Notwithstanding an>4King in this Agreement to the contraiy, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments autborired,
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
these genera) provisions.
rnMPI.TANCE RY GRANTEF WITH LAWS AND RF.GULATIONS In
connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all
statuttt, laws reflations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal
authorities which shall impose tmy oblif tions ordiity'upbh the Grantee, including
the acquisition of any and all necessary peimits and RSA 31-9S-b.
RRCORDS and ACCQDNTS.

Betwd^ the Effectire Date airf th^-^tp seven (7),y^ after the.Ct^Ielipn
Date, unless'bthcrwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incinrcd in connection with the
Project, mcluding, but not limited to. costs of administration. tiansporUtion.
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services, Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years.after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant tcrrits or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1, at my time during the Grantee's nohnal business hours, and as
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all

' records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee sliall
perinit the State td'aiidit, acaminc, and reproduce wch records, and to make audits
of all contracts, invpicw, tnaterials, payrolls, rireords of perMnnel. data (as that
term is hereinafter defined), and other inforinatibn relating to all matters covered
by this AgreemenL As used in this paragraph, '"Grantee" includes all pereoiis,
natural or fictional; affiliated with, controlled by, or under cominon ownership
witl^ the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform
the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel cngaged.in the Projwt shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall bc'properiy licensed and au&orized
to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgrantee,
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
the State, or v^o is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the rcpitseiitative of the State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the intcfpretaiiqn of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his^er decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA. RRTRNTION OF DATA; AQCP^.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all informauon and things
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason ofi this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, fil^
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2. Betvreen the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant to
the Slate, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to oil data for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.

9.3. No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other couP''".by
anyone other than the State. /

9.4. On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property ̂ \■llich has been re*... .cd
from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the Slate
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur. .

9.5. The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authonty to
publish, disclose, distribute and othenvise use, in whole or in part, all data.

10. rONOmONAr. nature or agreement. Notwlthstan^g anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of pajnncnts hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of ftinds, and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hereurider in excess of such available or appropriated
ftinds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the Stale shall
have the ri^t to withhold payment until such fimds become available, if ever, and
shall have the ri^t to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such tennination.
RVTENTOF DEFAIIT.T; REMEDIES.
Any one or more ofthe following acts or omissions of the Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of Default");
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any rejxjrt required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to. the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants tmd conditions of this AgreemeiiL
Upon the occurrence ofany Event of Defbult, the State may take any one, or more,
ofall, of the following actions: . . .
Give the Grantee a wittca notice sp^fying the Event of Defiiult and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greatCT orleser spireification of time,
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of DcfeuU Is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the
Grant Amount which wouid otherwise accrue to the Grantee during th ^
finih the date of such notice until such time, as the State determines . we
Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set pffag^t any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damagesthe State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.
tf.rmtnation.
In the event of any early terminaUon of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later than fi fteen (15) days after the date of termination, a rcf^ (hereinafter
re ferred to as the Tenninaiion ReporfO describing in detail all. Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date oftennination,
In the event of Termination under para^pbs 10 or 12.4 of these gcnml

12.2. provisions, the approval of such a Terminaticm R.eport by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.
In the event of Tennination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general

12.3. provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
inclined by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.
Nptwi.tlwtmding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or.

12.4. except where notice default has bcfai given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may tenninate this Agreement without cause uppn thirty (30) days isnittch notice.

13. rnNFLICT f)f IfJTRRF.RT. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hacppshire or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exciriscs any functions or responsibilities in the review or

11.
11.1.

11.1.1
11.1.2
11.1.3
11.1.4
11.2.

11.2.1

11.2.2

11.2.3

11.2.4

12.
12.1.
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approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which ofTecis his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agrccmral or the proceeds thereof.

" 'GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In thc'pcrfDf^mcc orthis
I  Agreement the Grantee, its etnployees, and any subcontractor or siibgrantec of 18.

the Grantee arc in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the Slate. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or siibgranlces, shall have authority
to bind the State nor arc they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
coinpcn^tion or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

15. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCOhTTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19.
oihenvise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior wrilien
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgrantcd by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the Slate. 20.

16. INDEMNIFICATION. The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slate, its officers and employees, by 21.
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out
offer which may ̂  claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the Grantee
or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute'a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the State, whiclt immunity is hereby reserved to
the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement. 22.

17. INSURANCE.

17.1 The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall 23.
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the bmefit of the State, the following
insurance:

17.1.1 Stamtory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employe^ engaged in the perfonharice of the Project, end

17.1.2 General liability insurance against all claims ofbodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than S1,000.000 per occurrence and 52,000,000
aggregfitc for bodily injury or death any one incident, and 5500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of tliis paragraph shnll be the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to tlic Stale, and authorized to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the Slate, certificates of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance
recpiired under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
dale of each insurancc'^Hcy.
WAJVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State lb enforce any provisions
hereofafter any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights \vith regard
to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver ofany Event of befauh
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the Stale to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or gi\xn at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid; In a United States Post Office addressed to the parlies at the addresses
first abpve given.
AMENDMENT, tliis A^ement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in wmtirig signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TKRhfS. This Agreement shall
be construed in accordance with the law of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is
binding upoii and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in.determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES, the parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, cjch of which shall be deemed an origiiuil. constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Tlie additional of modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
EXHIBITS TO GRANT

Exhibit A Special Provisions

Exhibit B Scope of Services

Exhibit C Budget

Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances

FTA Master Agreement

Federal Clauses

2 CFR Part 200

Social Service Documents to Include:

501 (c)3
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Persormel and Salaries
Resumes



Revised 03/17/2025

ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
EXfflBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.l. Amend G-1 Section 2. "SCOPE OF WORK" by adding the following:

2.1. The Grantee may change the Project scope, including related services, only with the prior
written agreement of the State and in accordance with applicable Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) requirements.

A.2. Amend G-1 Section 3. "AREA COVERED" by adding the following:

3.1. Services may extend to adjacent states with prior written approval from the State. The State
reserves the right to require formal cost allocation measures.

A.3. Amend G-1 Section 5. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT:

VOUCHERS: PAYMENT" by adding the following:

5.6. The grant amount, as identified in Exhibit C, Budget, represents the net Federal/State
amount(s) to be paid to the Grantee. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide, and document
the availability of, local funds sufficient to meet the project cost in excess of the Grant Price
Limitation.

5.7. The Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the State,
together with all information to support the request. Such requests for payment shall be
properly completed and signed. Requests for payments must be for allowable costs only as
defined in 2 CFR Part 200. as amended. No requests for advance payment will be accepted
by the State.

5.8. Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand production of
(and the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section
7.

5.9. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records
required by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due
and owing to the Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this
Agreement.

5.10. Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the State and FTA of all reports required by this
Agreement is a condition precedent to final payment (i.e., payment for the last month or
portion thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of the
State and Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The fmal payment may be retained and
withheld pending receipt and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this
Agreement and resolution of all pending matters.

A.4. Amend G-1 Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS" by adding the following:

6.1. The Grantee shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
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employment, notices setting forth the provisions of the Federal Title VI non-discrimination
requirements.

6.2. The Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, age,
creed, sex, or national origin.

6.3. The provisions of 2 CFR 200. as amended, shall apply to the local administration of this
agreement and any subgrantee under this agreement.

6.4. In the event of any conflict between the requirements within this Exhibit related to Federal
requirements and Federal Clauses incorporated elsewhere into this Agreement, the Federal
Clauses take precedence.

A.5. Amend G-1 Section 9. "DATA; RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding the
following:

9.6. The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this
agreement:

9.6.1 Except for its own internal use, the Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to
do so, without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have
either released or approved the release of such data to the public.

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200. as amended, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non
exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to
authorize others to use, for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant,
cooperative agreement, subgrant, or third party grant, irrespective of whether a
copyright has been obtained; and any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-
recipient, or third party contractor purchases ownership with Federal assistance.

9.7. It is FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.6, FTA may make
available to any recipient, subgrantee, grantee, or subgrantee its license in the copyright to
the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data first produced under this
Agreement.

9.8. The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State and United States, their
officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any
liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation of
the proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication,
translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this
Agreement.

9.9. Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent
or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the
United States under any patent.
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9.10. Sections 9.4,9.5, and 9.6 are not applicable to material furnished to the Grantee by the State
or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement; provided that
such incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.11. In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the
project shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the
State or FTA may direct.

A.6. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION" by adding the following:

12.5. The termination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) prior to final payment.

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Grantee
which, by the terras of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the
completion of the Services and upon payment of the Grant Price, this Agreement, and all
obligations of the parties hereunder, shall cease and shall be without recourse to the parties
hereto.

12.8. Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
either the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the Grantee hereunder,
the Grantee may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days' written
notice.

A.7. Amend G-1 Section 15. "ASSIGNMENTS/AND/SUBCONTRACTS" by adding the
following:

15.1. The Grantee shall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgrants for any
work covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each subgrantee
The Grantee shall take such action with respect to any subgrant as the State may direct as a
means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. The Grantee
shall ensure that any subgrantee/contractor has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals
required for the performance of grant services.

A.8. Amend G-1 by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25 DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services
described in Exhibit B and which satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200. as amended.

EQUIPMENT: An article of nonexpendable, tangible personal having a useful life of more
than one year and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser of the capitalization
level established by the governmental unit for financial statement purposes, or $5,000.
Includes rolling stock and all other such property used in the provision of public transit
services.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures, and/or maps submitted to the



Revised 03/17/2025

State detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Grants modified and
approved by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation
services being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from subgrants,
contracts, purchase of service agreements, and excess matching funds that directly benefit
the transportation service.

SECTION 5339: FTA's Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program of Moving Ahead for
Progress in the 21 Century Act fMap-21) of 2012. as amended.

STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation,
Bureau of Rail and Transit.

A.9. Amend G-1 by adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

26 ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1. Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shall keep and maintain the records, documents,
and accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The
Grantee shall maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to
complaints and comments received from the public. In the event, the State disputes the
Grantee's operations or records as submitted for payment or otherwise, the final resolution
shall rest with the State.

26.2. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a
period of three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of the resolution of all
matters relating to this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Grantee's
normal business hours, and as often as the State or FTA may demand, the Grantee shall
make available to the State and FTA or their designees all records pertaining to matters
covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall permit the State and FTA to audit, examine,
and reproduce such records, and to make audits of all contracts, grants, invoices, materials,
payrolls, records of personnel. Data (as defined in G-1 section 9.1), and other information
relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Grantee"
includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.

26.3. General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated
General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the
National Transit Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the
Department upon request.

26.3.1 The Bipartisan Infi^tructure Law amended 49 U.S.C. 5335 (a) to require the Federal
Transit Administration to collect "geographic service area coverage" data through the
NTD.

A.IO. Amend G-1 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section
27:
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27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terms and
conditions apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with funds
provided through this or other Agreements between the State and the Grantee:

27.1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.10
> S5339. 9040.1H and future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR
Parts 661 and 663. as applicable.

27.2. The Grantee shall ensure that all Contractors comply with construction materials
requirements set forth in the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (TIJAi Pub. L. No. 117-
58 which includes the Build America. Buv America Act fAct) Pub. L No 117-58. div. G $$

70901-17. The Contractor shall purchase construction materials for projects in accordance
with the Act, Federal implementation guidance M-22-11. and other applicable federal laws,
regulations, and guidance.

27.3. As applicable, all vehicles shall be purchased by the State unless the Grantee has received
prior approval from the State to procure vehicles.

27.4. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased
by the Grantee subject to the prior approval of the State.

27.5. Title to all project equipment shall be in the name of the Grantee; provided, however, that
in order to secure the complete performance of this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the
State a security interest in all such equipment at the time of purchase and shall execute
financing statements and do all other acts necessary or useful to the perfection of that
interest and the renewal thereof. In connection with the purchase of any motor vehicles
pursuant to this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the State a security interest in the motor
vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps necessary to protect the State's
security interest, including taking steps to identify the State as a lien holder of such motor
vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

27.6. In the event that this agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property become
the property of the State and it is imderstood and agreed that legal title to such equipment
shall be transferred to the State as soon as feasible.

27.7. Project equipment will be disposed of in accordance with FTA Circular 9040. IH as
amended and the State Management Plan unless written approval is received from the State.

A.ll. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing
of all nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit to the
State a certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance with the terms of
the Agreement. The inventory listing and equipment certification shall be supplied to the
State by each year, generally by June 30*^.

A.12. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE, The Grantee shall be responsible for the maintenance
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and repair of all equipment related to this Agreement. The Grantee shall maintain all such
equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness. As applicable,
the Grantee shall certify that a proper maintenance plan that meets or exceeds the original
equipment manufacturer's preventive maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle
maintenance plans must be approved by the Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair,
and physical improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Grantee and at
a location specified by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the State of any changes in this
location. The Grantee further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any physical improvement
to equipment as requested by the State. The State, FTA, and/or their designees shall have
the right to conduct periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper maintenance
and repair.

A.13. Amend G-1 by adding "VEHICLE STORAGE" as section 30:

30. VEHICLE STORAGE. As applicable, with respect to any motor vehicles purchased in
whole or part under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Grantee shall
park or garage each vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for
each vehicle. The Grantee shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in
such a manner that its daily operations are not impaired or curtailed by conditions of weather
or any other circumstances. The Grantee shall notify the State of the location of the garaging
site and any relocation.

A.14. Amend G-1 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 31:

31. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As applicable, all project equipment shall be inspected and
certified by the Department of Safety and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle
Safety Standards and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United
States Department of Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety
under RSA 266:72-a. in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

31.2. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide the State with full, and prompt written
notification of any accident involving any vehicle used in its services. In addition, the
Grantee shall be responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

31.3. The Grantee shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset
Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes.

A.15, Amend G-1 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 32:

32. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Grantee is
conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this grant, which
invention, improvement, or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United States
or any foreign country, the Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed
report. The rights and responsibilities of the Grantee and the State with respect to such
invention, improvement, or discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable
Federal laws, regulations, policies, and any waiver thereof.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 33:
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33. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the
Grantee, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any
company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee, any
fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent
upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of
this warranty, the State shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in
its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the
full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or
contingent fee.



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

B. 1 Capital Purchases

1.1 The Grantee, Advance Transit, Inc. (hereinafter the "Grantee"), will procure the
following capital items for use in accordance with requirements associated with its FTA
§5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program funding within the State:

1.1.1 One (1) ADA accessible 10 passenger, gasoline fueled, Ford 350 transit vehicle
for the ACCESS-AT service area. This vehicle will replace the eight-passenger
diesel fueled cutaway #1751, that entered service in 2017 and has since met its
useful life requirements.

1.1.2 Two (2) ADA accessible 26 passenger, diesel < 30' low-floor heavy duty transit buses. These
two vehicles will replace aging 26', 19 passenger cutaway buses and will meet the increased
ridership across Advance Transit's service area.

1.1.3 One (1) ADA accessible Kilton transit hub shelter. The shelter will replace the
existing shelter located at the Kilton Library stop in West Lebanon, NH. The
replacement will accommodate the high volume of passengers and provide
additional shelter and passenger amenities. This project is a collaboration with
the City of Lebanon's streetscape improvement project.

1.1.4 Repair and replacement of maintenance shop, parts-room, and garage floor of
the facility located at 120 Billings Farm Road, Wilder, VT 05088-1027. Repairs
will include fixing existing concrete damage, resurfacing the entire floor, and
repainting the maintenance bays, parts room, and parking garages.

1.1.5 One (1) Replacement maintenance lift. The current lift was installed in 1999
and has significant wear and tear.

1.1.6 One (1) FMLive (fuel master) fueling system upgrade. The upgraded system
will enhance Advance Transit's fuel management capabilities through real-time
fuel transaction viewing, inventory, and reporting for a currently outdated
system.

1.2 Grant funding for all projects will be provided by the State as shown in Exhibit C.

1.3 The Grantee will purchase the capital equipment in compliance with all applicable
Federal regulations and guidance including FTA Circular 4220.1G, "Third Party
Contracting Guidance," or the most recent.

1.4 Prior to any capital procurement, the Grantee shall submit appropriate procurement
documentation demonstrating compliance with Federal procurement requirements,
including FTA Third Party Procurement guidelines per FTA Circular 4220.IG or the
most recent, to the State for review and approval. Such documentation may include, but
is not limited to, the following:



1.4.1 Verification of utilizing NH's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DEE)
directory to invite a DEE to vie for the procurement;

1.4.2 Federal Clauses that that v^^ill require acknowledgement by the vendor, as
applicable to procurements other than micro-purchases, and/or fair and
reasonable determination for micro-purchases;

1.4.3 Evidence of appropriate procurement methodology demonstrating fair and open
competition, e.g., small procurement, Request for Proposals;

1.4.4 As applicable, independent cost estimate (ICE) and cost/price analysis as well
as pre-award vehicle certifications including Buy America and FMVSS.

1.5 Upon written approval, the Grantee may proceed with the procurement and submit an
invoice to the State for reimbursement of project expenses in compliance with Federal
guidance.

1.6 Upon the conclusion of the procurement, the Grantee shall submit final documentation
to the State.

1.7 The Grantee may submit a written request to the State's designated representative to
modify the type and/or quantity of the capital equipment detailed in the Scope of Services
(Exhibit B) and Budget (Exhibit C), provided that said changes are within the total
contract amount and FTA and State Capital Match (if applicable) eligibility. Said written
request must contain sufficient details to support and substantiate the requested
change(s). Within 30 days of receipt of the Grantee's written request, the State will
provide a written decision to the Grantee as to whether or not approval is granted and, if
approved, the Grantee and State shall subsequently.



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

C. 1 The Grant Limitation price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) §5339 portion of the eligible project costs. Federal and State
funds are granted as follows:

Project FTA §5339
FTA

Funding
FTA

%

State

Capital
Match

Local

Match

Total

Project

Cost

1 (I) Kilton Transit Hub shelter $12,000 80% $1,500 $1,500 $15,000

2 FMLive (fuel master) fiieling system upgrade $13,600 80% SO $3,400 $17,000

3 (1) Maintenance Lift $36,000 80% $0 $9,000 $45,000

4 Shop, parts room and garage floor repair $120,000 80% $0 $30,000 $150,000

5 (1) 10 pax. gas Ford Transit 350 $127,500 85% $11,250 $11,250 $150,000

6 (2) 26 pax. diese! <30-foot transit buses $1,147,500 85% $101,250 $101,250 $1,350,000

Total Project Funding $1,456,600 $114,000 $156,400 $1,727,000

Total Grant Funding $1,570,600

* See §1. /. 7, Exhibit B, Scope of Services

1.1 Funds are contingent upon Federal appropriations.

C.2 Pre-approval of any procurement is required by the State as detailed in Exhibit B, Scope of
Services.

C.3 As applicable, the Grantee may seek reimbursement for these funds by submitting individual
invoices for projects as completed. Requests shall be monthly or less frequent.

C.4 The invoice(s) must include verification of source(s) of matching funds.

C.5 Pre-approval to modify the type and/or capital equipment is required as detailed in §1.7,
Exhibit B, Scope of Services.



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 12,1984.1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concemed.

Business ID: 52688

Certificate Number: 0007147026

$3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



ADVANCE TRANSIT

P.O. Box 1027, Wilder, VT05088 • 802-295-f824 • advancetranslt.com

Certificate of Authority

I, Matt Osbom, hereby certify that I am the duly elected Secretary of Advance Transit,

Incorporated. I hereby certify that the following is a true copy of the current Bylaws of the

Corporation and that the Bylaws authorize the Executive Director to bind the Corporation for

contractual obligations.

I further certify that Adams Carroll currently holds the position of Executive Director

and is thereby authorized to bind the Corporation for contractual obligations.

1 further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this

certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position indicated and

that they have the full authority to bind the corporation. This authority shall remain valid for

thirty (30) days from the date of this certificate.

DATED: ATTE.ST:

(Name & Title)



BYLAWS OF

ADVANCE TRANSIT. INC.

Adopted June 19, 2015

Revised June 21, 2018

Revised May 16, 2019

ARTICLE I

Name. Purpose and Offices

Section 1. Name and Type. The name of this corporation shall be Advance
Transit, Incorporated, and may hereinafter be referred to as the Corporation, "AT" or
"Advance Transit". The principal office of the Corporation shall be in Wilder, Vermont, or
such other location as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time. The
Corporation's business shall be conducted in New Hampshire and Vermont.

Section 2. Form and Purpose. The form of the corporation shall be a voluntary,
not-for-profit corporation, incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire
(R.S.A. 292), and registered to do business in the State of Vermont. The purpose of the
Corporation shall be to provide a corriprehensive transportation network for the several
towns of the Upper Valley of New Hampshire and Vermont.

Section 3. Limitations. The Corporation is organized and shall be operated
exclusively for charitable, religious, educational, or scientific purposes, including for such
purposes, the making of distributions to organizations under Section 501 (c)(3) of the
Intemal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provisions of any future Internal
Revenue law). No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall be to the benefit of or
be distributed to its Directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the
Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for
services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes
set forth above. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be for the
carrying out of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and AT shall
not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements),
any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.



ARTICLE II

Members

Membership in the Corporation having been abolished effective July 1, 2015, the
Corporation shall have no Members.

ARTICLE III

Board of Directors

Section 1. General Powers. All corporate powers of the Corporation shall be
exercised by or under the authority of, and the affairs of the Corporation shall be managed
under the direction of, the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number. Tenure. Qualification, and Manner of Election of

Directors.

A. The number of Directors (members of the Board) shall be not more than
nineteen (19) nor less than nine (9), chosen as provided in III.2.B., C.. and F. The Board
shall have at least five (5) voting members who are not of the same immediate family or
related by blood or marriage.

B. Up to nine (9) "Municipal" Directors shall be elected by the Directors upon
nomination of the Executive Committee. Municipal Directors shall be recommended for
nomination by those Municipalities providing funding to, and served by, the Corporation.

C. For each Municipal Director serving at any time, the Board shall have one (1)
At-Large Director, elected by the Board upon nomination by the Executive Committee
with due regard for assembling on the Board a diversity of talents and backgrounds.

D. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, a Director shall serve for the longer
of: a) three (3) years, or b) until the election and qualification of his or her successor.

E. A Director shall be eligible to serve no more than three (3) consecutive three-
year terms (a partial term shall not be counted for purposes of this provision). A Director



who has served three consecutive 3-year terms shall be eligible for re-election after
having been off the Board for at least one (1) year. The Board terms shall be staggered
as much as possible so that approximately one-third (1/3) of the directors shall be elected
annually. This rule shall take effect from and after the effective date of these Bylaws. No
term of a Director that commenced prior to the effective date of these Bylaws shall be
counted against the 3-term limit for that Director.

F. In addition to Municipal and At-Large Directors, the Executive Director of AT
shall serve as a Director Ex Ofificio, but shall not be entitled to vote.

Section 3. Annual Meeting. The Annual Meeting of the Board shall be held in June
or on such a date and at such a time and place as the Board of Directors shall determine.
The business of the annual meeting may include, but not be limited to, the election of
Directors, the election of officers, and the presentation of reports.

Section 4. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at
least two (2) times a year, in addition to the annual meeting, at a place and time to be
decided upon by the Board during the Annual meeting. The Board may provide, by
resolution, for a different time and place for regular meetings without further notice than
by such resolution. Attendance at regular board meetings is imperative to conduct
business related to the oversight of the Corporation. Any Director who misses two (2)
regularly scheduled board meetings including annual meeting, over the course of one (1)
year may be subject to removal following the process outlined in Section 11. Removal of
Director. By prior arrangement with the President, a Director may participate in a regular
meeting by telephone or other electronic means allowing all participants to hear each
other.

Sections. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by or
at the request of the President or any two (2) Directors, and shall be held at such place
and time as the President or Directors may determine. The person or persons calling a
Special Meeting may call for the meeting to be conducted by telephone. By prior
arrangement with the President, a Director may participate by telephone in a special
meeting that is to be conducted in person, provided the Director so arranges with the
person or persons calling the meeting.

Section 6. Notice. Notice of any meeting, regular or special, of the Board shall
be given at least two (2) days previously thereto by telephone, email, or delivered
personally to each director at his or her address as shown by the records of the
Corporation.

Section 7. Quorum. A majority of the then-sitting Directors entitled to vote shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board, but if
less than a majority of the Directors is present at any meeting, a majority of the directors
present may adjoum the meeting without further notice



Section 8. Board Decisions. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board, unless the act of a
greater number is required by law or by these Bylaws.

Section 9. Action Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken
by the Board at a meeting may be taken without a meeting if the action is taken by
unanimous consent of all Directors evidenced by one or more written consents describing
the action taken, signed by each Director, and included with the minutes or filed with the
records of the Corporation. Action taken by consents is effective when the last Director
signs the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date. A signed
consent has the effect of a meeting vote and may be described as such in any document.
Consents may be transmitted electronically by email or other means, provided they bear
sufficient evidence of the Director's signature.

Section 10. Proxies. At any regular, annual or special meeting of the Board, a
Director entitled to vote may vote by telephone, or by proxy executed in writing, including
email, by that director. The proxy must be limited to a specific issue, not general, and
must be signed and delivered to the Secretary one (1) day before the meeting. The proxy
shall not count toward a quorum.

Section 11. Removal of Director. Any Director may be removed from the Board
by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all of its members entitled to vote. Such action
may be taken at any regular meeting or any special meeting at which due notice of the
proposed removal shall have been given to the Board members together with or as part
of the notice of the meeting.

Such removal may be accomplished with or without cause, but the Director
involved shall be given an opportunity to be present and to be heard at the meeting at
which his or her removal is considered.

The removal of a Director may be initiated at a regular meeting of the Board
members by a motion made at the meeting, at a special meeting, or by petition signed
and submitted to the Secretary by not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the voting
Directors. More than one Director may be considered for removal under a single motion
or by a single petition for removal, but vote on the motion of petition for removal shall be
separate as to each Director.

Section 12. Vacancies and New Directorships. The Board may elect Directors
to fill any vacancies on the Board, by majority vote of the Directors present and voting at
a duly called meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present. The Board shall set a
term of office for each Director at the time of his/her election, which may in no event
exceed three (3) years.

Section 13. Compensation. No member of the Board (with the exception of the
Ex Officio member) shall receive a salary or other, compensation for his/her services



except for allowable expenses incurred in connection with official duties of a Director as
defined in Board policy_

Section 14. Responsibilities. Each Director is expected to support the
Corporation as follows:

1. be fully acquainted with ATs purpose, objectives, programs, and
finances:

2. comply with all AT policies including the AT conflict of interest
policy;

3. serve on at least one (1) standing committee; and

4. fulfill those additional duties and requirements as set out in these
Bylaws.

ARTiCLE IV

Officers

Section 1. Officers. The Officers of the Board shall be a President, Vice
President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, Assistant Secretary, and such other Officers as may
be elected or appointed by the Board, all of whom shall be Directors at all times they
serve as officers except for the Assistant Secretary who may be the Executive Director.

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The Officers of the Board are nominated
by the Executive Committee and elected by an affirmative vote of a majority of members
of the Board entitled to vote, and shall hold office for the longer of two (2) years or until
their successors are elected or appointed and qualified. An officer may succeed
himself/herself in the same office for two (2) additional terms. After being out of that office
for at least one (1) term, a person may again be elected to that office. The same person
may simultaneously occupy more than one office except for the President, who shall not
hold either the office of Treasurer or Secretary.

Section 3. Removal. Any Officer elected or appointed by the Board may be
removed by the Board by affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all of Directors entitled to
vote whenever in its judgment the best interests of AT would be served thereby. The
Officer involved shall be given an opportunity to be present and heard at the meeting at
which his or her removal Is considered.



Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation,
removal, disqualification, or otherwise may be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion
of the term.

Section 5. Powers and Duties.

A- President. The President of the Board shall be the Corporation's principal
executive officer and shall have the following specific powers and duties:

1. To preside at all meetings of the Board and the Executive committees.

2. To appoint all committee chairs, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws.

3. To see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are carried into effect.

4. To meet regularly with the Executive Director

5. From time to time to report to the Board of Directors all matters within his or her
knowledge that in the best interest of AT should be brought to their attention.

6. In addition to the foregoing, the President shall have such other powers, duties
and authority as may be set forth elsewhere in these Bylaws or as may be prescribed by
the Board from time to time.

Vice President. The Board Vice President shall exercise the powers and
perform the functions that from time to time are assigned by the President or the
Board. The Vice President shall have the powers and shall exercise the duties of the
President assigned to him or her by the Board whenever the President, by reason of
illness or other disability or absence, is unable to act, and at other times when specifically
directed by the President or the Board.

C. Secretary. The Board Secretary shall be the custodian of and shall maintain
the AT books and records and shall be the recorder of all AT formal actions and

transactions. The Secretary shall have the following specific powers and duties:

1. To record or supervise the proper recording of the minutes and transactions of
all meetings of the Directors, and to maintain separate books at the principal office of AT,
or such other place as the Board may order of all such meetings in the form and manner
required by law.

2. To keep at the principal office, open to inspection by Directors at all reasonable
times, the original or a certified copy of the Bylaws of the Corporation as amended or
othenA/ise altered.

4. To attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the Corporation required by
law or these Bylaws.



5. To attend to such correspondence and make such reports as may be assigned
to him/her.

6. In addition to the foregoing, the Secretary shall have such other powers, duties,
and authority as may be set forth elsewhere in these Bylaws and as may be prescribed
from time to time by the President or the Board.

D. Assistant Secretary. The Assistant Secretary shall assist the Secretary and
other Officers as requested.

E. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall oversee the financial affairs of the corporation,
and shall perform all other duties incidental to the office or assigned by the Chair, by these
Bylaws or by Board resolution. The Treasurer will serve as the Chair of the Finance
Committee, and have the following specific powers and duties:

1. To keep and maintain, open to inspection by the President and any Director, at
all reasonable times, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business
transactions of AT, which shall include all matters required by law and which shall be in
form as required by law.

2. To ensure that the Corporation adopts, implements, and follows appropriate
financial controls.

3. To render to the President and Secretary or to the Board whenever they may
require it, an account of all transactions as Treasurer and a financial statement In form
satisfactory to them, showing the condition of AT.

4. Working with AT staff, to prepare and present to the Board an annual budget.

5. In addition to the foregoing, the Treasurer shall have such other powers, duties
and authority as may be set forth elsewhere In these Bylaws, and as may be prescribed
from time to time by the President or the Board.

ARTICLE V

Executive Director

Section 1. The Board shall appoint an Executive Director (ED) who shall be
responsible for the day-to-day operation of the corporation. The ED shall be an ex-officio
member without vote of the Board and all Board committees and shall act as the duly



authorized representative of the Board in all matters except those which the Board has
formally designated some other person or group to act. The duties of the ED shall include,
but not be limited to, those outlined in the current ED job description.

ARTICLE VI

Committees and Policies

Section 1. Committees. The Board shall have the following Standing
Committees. In addition, the Board, at its discretion, may constitute and appoint additional
committees for such purpose and duration as the Board shall determine. Except for the
Executive Committee, Committees may have, in addition to a majority of Director
members, such other members as the Board shall designate, who shall serve for such
terms as the Board shall specify. All committees shall have a Board member as chair.
Committee members shall be appointed by the committee chair In collaboration with the
Board President.

A. Executive Committee. The President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer,
the Chairs of Standing Committees, immediate past President, and Executive Director
shall constitute an Executive Committee, which shall be authorized to exercise the powers
of the full Board between regular meetings of the Board when it is impractical, in the view
of the President (or in the absence or unavailability of the President, a Vice-President), to
call a special meeting of the Board. The immediate past President and Executive Director
positions on the Executive Committee shall be non-voting. Any action taken by the
Executive Committee shall be presented to the Board at its next regular or special meeting
and shall be included in the minutes or other records of Board actions. The Executive

Committee shall also function as the Board Compensation Committee and Governance
Committee, with responsibility for nominating board members and board officers, for
maintaining the Corporate Bylaws and for evaluating and setting the compensation and
benefits for the Executive Director.

B. Finance Committee. The Finance Committee, working with AT's staff, is
responsible for development of ATs budget, and monitoring and adjustment of the budget
during each year and from year to year. The Finance Committee interviews prospective
audit firms and makes recommendations to the Board.

C. Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee is responsible for policies
and procedures related to employees, employee benefits and staff levels. The Committee
makes recommendations to the Board.



D. Program Planning and Evaluation Committee. The Program Planning and
Evaluation Committee establishes the strategic direction of the organization including the
drafting and adoption of Advance Transit's Five-Year Transit Development Plan and its
associated service designs. The Committee makes recommendations to the Board.

E. Public Relations and Marketing Committee. The Public Relations and

Marketing Committee assists AT in meeting its goals and priorities through effective
strategic communication, marketing and philanthropic initiatives. The Committee makes
recommendations to the Board.

Section 2. Policies. The Board, in its discretion, may implement and adopt
policies to further define the goals and operations of the Corporation including policies
related to charitable giving, financial management, conflicts of interest, employee conduct
and other policies related to matters pertinent to AT. Policies may be implemented,
revoked or amended by the Board at any time in its sole discretion.

ARTICLE VII

Certificates of Shares

The Corporation has no shares and shall not issue share certificates.

ARTICLE VIII

Contracts. Checks. Deposits. Gifts and Expenditures

Section 1. Contracts. The Board may authorize any officer or officers, agent or
agents of the Corporation, in addition to the officers so authorized by these Bylaws, to
enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf
of AT, and such authority may be general or may be confined to specific instances.

Section 2. Checks. Drafts or Orders. All checks, drafts or orders for the payment
of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of AT shall be
signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of AT and in such manner as shall from
time to time be determined by resolution of the Board. In the absence of such



determination by the Board, such instruments shall be signed by the Executive Director
and countersigned by the President of the Board or Treasurer.

Section 3. Deposits. All AT funds shall be deposited from time to time to the credit
of AT, in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board may select.

Section 4. Gifts. The Board may accept on behalf of AT any contribution, gift,
bequest, or devise.

Section 5. Approval of Expenditures. Any proposed expenditure of $100,000 or more,
not included in the approved capital and/or operating budget, requires an affirmative vote
of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Board entitled to vote, the notice of which has
specified the details regarding the proposed expenditure.

ARTICLE IX

Books and Records

AT shall keep: (i) correct and complete books and records of accounts; (ii) minutes
of the proceedings of its Board and committees; and (iii) at its principal office, a record
giving the names and addresses of the Directors entitled to vote. All books and records
of AT are open to inspection by a Director or his/her agent or attorney upon reasonable
written request to the Executive Director or Board President.

ARTICLE X

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of AT shall be from July 1 through June 30.



ARTICLE XI

Amendment of Bylaws

These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed, and new Bylaws may be
adopted by: (1) a majority of the directors of the Board present at any regular meeting or
at a special meeting, if at least seven (7) days' written notice is given to all directors of
Intention to alter, repeal, or adopt new Bylaws at such meeting, or (2) an affirmative vote
at any regular meeting of two-thirds (2/3) of all of the directors of all of the Board entitled
to vote.

ARTICLE XII

Conflicts of Interest and Pecuniary Benefit Transactions

The Directors, officers, members of standing and ad hoc committees and
employees of AT have a responsibility to avoid conflicts of interest and the appearance
of such conflicts, and to transact the affairs of AT honestly and economically in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations and in a manner which promotes the
best interests of AT. The Board has adopted a written conflicts of interest policy, which is
appended to these Bylaws as Attachment A.

ARTICLE XIII

Waiver of Notice

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of Chapter 292
of the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated or these Bylaws, a waiver thereof, in
writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after
the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.



ARTICLE XIV

Dissolution

Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the Board shall, after paying or making
provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all the assets
of the Corporation exclusively for the purposes of AT, in such manner or to such
organization or organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable,
education, religious or scientific purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt
organization or organizations under 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or
the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law). Any such
assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Superior Court of the county in
which the principal office of AT is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such
organization or organizations as said court shall determine, which are organized and
operated exclusively for such purposes.

ARTICLE XV

Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Each officer, Director of the Corporation and member of a Board standing or ad
hoc committee now or hereafter serving as such shall be indemnified by the Corporation
against any and all claims and liabilities to which he or she has or shall become, by reason
of serving or having served as such officer. Director or committee member, or by reason
of any action alleged to have been taken, omitted, or neglected by him or her as such
officer, Director or committee member; and the Corporation shall reimburse each such
person for all legal expenses reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with any
such claim or liability; provided, however, that no such person shall be indemnified
against, or be reimbursed for, any expense incurred in connection with any claim or
liability arising out of his or her own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The amount
paid or reimbursed to any officer, Director or committee member by way of indemnification
shall not exceed his or her actual, reasonable, and necessary expenses incurred in
connection with the matter involved. The right of indemnification hereinabove provided
for shall not be exclusive of any rights to which any officer. Director of the Corporation or
committee member may othenwise be entitled by law.



ATTACHMENT A

Policy on Conflict of Interest and Pecuniary Benefit Transactions

Conflict of Interest and Pecuniary Benefit Transactions.

A. General. It shall be against the policy of the Corporation to have conflicts of
Interest with its directors, officers, members of standing or ad hoc committees, staff or
members of their immediate families. A conflict of interest exists when there is a potential
that an individual may obtain a direct or indirect pecuniary benefit, or any other improper
gain or advantage, as a result of activities conducted on behalf of AT, or when actions
advance a person's interests or those of another rather than the interests of AT, or when
actions are adverse to the best interest of AT.

There exists between Advance Transit and its Board, officers, members of
standing and ad hoc committees, and management employees a fiduciary duty. The
Board, officers, committee members, and management employees have the
responsibility of administering the affairs of Advance Transit honestly and prudently, and
of exercising their best care, skill, and judgment for the sole benefit of Advance Transit.
Those persons shall exercise the utmost good faith in all transactions involved in their
duties, and they shall not use their positions with Advance Transit or knowledge gained
from their position for their personal benefit. The interests of the organization must have
the first priority in all decisions and actions.

B. Annual Questionnaire. Each Director, Board committee member, the
Executive Director, and all employees of AT designated by the President, shall annually
complete a questionnaire to provide information on their related entities and persons and
business activities and those of their immediate families as defined by statute, and such
questionnaire shall be reviewed by the President and Secretary and kept on file at the
office of the Corporation.

C. Pecuniary Benefit Transactions. In the event of a pecuniary benefit
transaction as defined by New Hampshire law in RSA 7:19-a, it shall be the policy of the
corporation to follow the statute. In the event the corporation or any director becomes
aware of any potential pecuniary benefit transaction as defined by law, the corporation
shall follow the procedures prescribed by law and give notice of the transaction to the full
board with notice of its next meeting. At the meeting, the board shall vote on whether the
pecuniary benefit transaction is in the best interest of the corporation, after full explanation
thereof and without the director being present and without any director who has had a
pecuniary benefit transaction within the fiscal year being present. If two-thirds of the
entire board shall vote that the pecuniary benefit transaction is in the best interest of the
corporation, the transaction shall be allowed. Notice of any such pecuniary benefit
transaction the value of which is $5000 or more shall be published according to
statute. Notice of all pecuniary benefit transactions shall be given to the Director of



Charitable Trusts of the State of New Hampshire annually, and individually for those
transactions exceeding $5000.

D. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest.

1. Individuals covered by this policy have a duty to voluntarily disclose any potential
conflict of interest prior to assuming their responsibilities or at the time the potential
conflict arises. Further, those individuals have a duty to annually disclose potential or
actual conflicts to the Board. Immediate family members are also included for disclosure
purposes. Immediate family members are defined as: spouse, child, parent, sibling, and
any person living in the same household as persons with responsibilities to transact the
affairs of AT. Any possible conflict of interest on the part of any director, officer, Board
committee member, employee or selected volunteer of AT shall be disclosed in writing to
the Board and made a matter of record through the annual procedure set out in the
conflicts of interest policy and also when the interest involves a specific issue or
transaction before the Board.

2. The Board will comply with all the requirements of New Hampshire law with
respect to conflicts of interest, including but not limited to:

(i) the requirement of a two-thirds (2/3) vote of disinterested directors when
the financial benefit to the director or officer is $500 or more in a fiscal year,

(ii) the advance notice requirements when the benefit exceeds $5,000 in a
fiscal year,

(iii) the limitations on participation by the affected director, officer, Board
committee member, employee or selected volunteer of AT in the decision of
the Board,

and

(iv) the requirement to create a record of the action in the minutes.

D. Role of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall review

the conflicts of interest policy at least annually and oversee the Conflict of Interest
disclosure process assuring that individuals covered by this policy are informed of its
disclosure requirements consistent with applicable laws. The Executive Committee shall
annually conduct a comprehensive survey of the individuals covered by this policy and
analyze other relevant information which may provide information that a potential or actual
conflict of interest exists. The Executive Committee will then report the results of this
process to the Board.



ACORD' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DDnrVYY)

7/8/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

^ORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
tr SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

HIckok & Boardman Insurance Group
346 Shelbume Rd
Burlington, VT 05401

Melissa Kavanagh

wclfo. Exti: (802) 383-1621 Not:(8D2) 658-0541
mkavanagh@acrlsure.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A Continental Western Insurance 10804

INSURED

Advance Transit, Inc.
PO Box 1027

Wilder. VT 05088

INSURER B Acadia Insurance Comoanv 31325

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
INSD

SUBR
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POUCYEFF
»MM/nnWYYV\

POUCYEXP
/MM/nn/WYYi UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GE7IERAL LIABILITY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR X CPA 5153286 - 20 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
J  1,000,000

CLAIMS44AE
DAMAGE TO RENTED J  300,000

MED EXP (Anv ona oafaonl
J  10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
J  1,000,000

GCra AOGREOATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
J  2,000,000

POLICY [jy 1_)^ LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO
J  2,000,000

s

B AUTOMOBILE LIABILTTY

CAA 5474531 -13 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT s  5,000,000

ANY AUTO

HEOULEO
rros

BODILY INJURY (Par oartonl $
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

SC
Al BODILY INJURY (Par acddanO s

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acddanlT s

s

B X UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LIAS

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE QUA 5474532-13 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

EACH OCCURRFNCF.
^  4,000,000

AGGREGATE
j  4,000,000

OED RETENTIONS s

A WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNERIEXECLmVE rTTl

If VM, dwcriba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

NfA

WCA 5153288-20 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

Y PER OTH-
* STATUTE FR

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
s  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
X  1,000,000

E.l_ DISEASE . POLICY UMfT
,  1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddKlonsI Ramarfcs Schadula, may b« attachMl If m«n apMi* (• raqulradi
Additional Insured status applies for The New Hampshire Department of Transportation on the General Liability policy per terms and conditions of attached
form CG 2010 04/13.

New Hampshire Department of Transportation
Bureau of Rail and Transit

)  PO Box 483
Concord, NH 03302

i

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WnTH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights ressived.

The ACORD name and logo are registered,marks of ACORD



POLICY NUMBER; GLR 0574256 06 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 2010 0413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Oraanlzation(s) Location(s) Of Covered Operations

ON FILE WITH THE COMPANY

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown In the Declarations.

A. Section 11 - Who Is An Insured is amended to
Include as an additional insured the person(s)
or organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but
only with respect to liability for "bodily Injury",
"property damage" or "personal and adver
tising Injury" caused, in whole or in part, by:

1. Your acts or omissions; or

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on
your behalf;

In the performance of your ongoing operations
for the additional Insured(s) at the location(s)
designated above.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional in
sured is required by a contract or agree
ment, the insurance afforded to such addi
tional insured will not be broader than that
which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional
Insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following additional
exclusions apply:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury"
or "property damage" occurring after:

1. All work, including
equipment furnished
such work, on the
service, maintenance

materials, parts or
in connection with
project (other than
or repairs) to be

2.

performed by or on behalf of the additional
Insured(s) at the location of the covered
operations has been completed; or

That portion of "your work" out of which
the Injury or damage arises has been put to
its intended use by any person or organiza
tion other than another contractor or sub
contractor engaged in performing opera
tions for a principal as a part of the same
project.

CG 2010 0413 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2



C. With respect to the Insurance afforded to these 2. Available under the applicable Limits of
additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;
Section 111 - Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional Insured is -phis endorsement shall not increase the appli-
required by a contract or agreement, the most cable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declara-
we will pay on behalf of the additional insured
Is the amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13



Cerlificalions and Assuiances Fiscal Year 2024

FEDERAL FISCAL YE.^ 2024 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA
ASSISTANCE PROQRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAN'lS,)

APnm mnin mc.

The Applicant ceitifles to the applicable provisions oCall categories: (check here)

Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category Certification

0.1 Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

02 Public Transpdrtation Agency Safdty Plans

03' Tax Liability and Feipny Cpnvictiods

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Maiiagenient.Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Fomtula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

to Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Gra.nts and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

1 1 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities: and Low or No Emission

Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Gertifieatjdns and Assurances Flisca], Y?ar 2024

12 Enliaaced Mobility of Seniors and individuals with Disabiliiies
Progranis

13 State Of Good. Repair Grants

[4 Inlrastructure Finance "Prdgr&iris

15 AlcohQi.and'CoDtrolied Substances Testing

1,6 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Pe.mand Responsive, Service

IS Interest and Firiaiicihg Costs

19 .Gyberseeurity GeitifiGatioii for Rail Rallihg.Stock and
dpefations

20 Tribal Trahsif Ffplfaiiis

21 Emergency Relief Program

CERTtFICAtlONS >^\D ASSURANCES SIGNAIURJS PACE

AFFItUVUTIpN OF APPLICAN

Nan« of to AppK.,. m c4 TmNm. m.
BY,S[GNTNG BELPW, on behalfqf the ARpiicantj I declare that it hM duly withorizcd mc to tii'alfe these
GcrUftcauons'and Asstjraitces;OTdfk It agrees to comply w'th all foetal Idws, regulations,
and r^uireraents,,fgriqw:applicabl^ guldap^, and comply with the .Gertifications and Xisunmces as
mdicaieUgh tlie'fqrfegding pagen^^ appiicatioa'ilsAuiApcized Representative niak«
Tnirisii Adhuhistraiibn (]Th) i" i'TCSpcctiye oT whctlicr thciindlvidual llial acted oh his or
her Applicanns ijcitaifdpiidhues/to rcpieseiit it.

The Gertifications and Assiinmccs llie-.'^pltcjuii selectsragpfy to cacK.A\«tfd.for which ii now s^ks, or'may
later seek federal asslirtancc io be awarded by ETArduting the.fedcnil fiscal year..

The Applicahi:afnrais;the'truihfi^css arid adcgr^yqfdie Cciiifi^ aiid As.suranc<» it:has-selected in the
statem^tS submittCd wiik'tiiis^dociitnent^^^ imy other submission made to FTA, and acloiowicd^ that the
Prd^Jin Fraud qivil gCra6diw;Act ,9f 19S6. M U;S.e.ii38b smd hnplcnienting U'S. DOT regulations,
"Prpgfam Fra.itd Givll,'R,CQifdic,^^'45i,CF^^^ ?PPly TO opy ccriir^tign, i^uiunce prsubmiKjpn niade to
FTA n\e crimiiial prpvisipiis.of l,f .U:S;G. §.10011^ to any ccrfificaubn, assurance, prsubnii«ion madciiin
cbohtetipn with 0 federal public traiiispprlalipn prograrn authorizcd By 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute



Certifications and Assiuances Fiscal Year 2024

In signing Ihis document. 1 declare undcr^euaUies ofpcijury that the foregoing Certificatioiis and Assurances, and
any other statements ma^e by inp^rtwialf of the Applicant are true and accurate.

Signature Date; '

Name A P A* ̂  ̂ Authorized Representative of Applicant



FFY 2024 MASTElR AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Adm.iriisti-atidn (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2024Master Agreement
reciuires recipients a;Qd subrecipiehts to cornply vVitli the requireiiiehts contained iiitlie
agccement in .o.rd_er- tp/receiyciFedera.t.fijnds, Theilangutige^epntm in the Master
A^:eeme;nt m^ inco.riDOrated iiito the adimmstraHoh-bft^^^^ my agency has
with the New HampsMre DepartiTient of Transportation (NHDOT^.

T ackhowledge receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Transit Adminisfration (FTA) Master
Agreenient and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's, agreement with
Nto.OT by refereriee. The Master Agreement r^.aii^ in force for the tertn of the

ADVAI'CS 'ttAmT. WC.
Name of Agency Date

AAAW
Name Gtf Autliorized Official Signature
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The following clauses are for inclusion into procurement documents, Ixit can also be inserted into contractual agreements. However, additional clauses and
certification may be required for contractual agreements.



ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

1. Record Retention. The Contractor will retain, and will require its subcontractors of all tiers to retain, complete and readily accessible records related in
whole or in part to the contract, including, but not limited to, data, documents, reports, statistics, leases, subcontracts, arrangements, other third party
Contracts of any type, and supporting materials related to those records, (a) A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the bid price. The
"bid guarantee" must consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond, certified check, or other negotiable Instrument accompanying a bid as assurance ,
that the bidder will, upon acceptance of the bid. execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified. )

2. Retention Period. The Contractor agrees to comply with the record retention requirements in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.334. The Contractor shall
maintain ail books, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of at not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or
expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case records shall
be maintained until the disposition of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

3. Access to Records. The Contractor agrees to provide sufficient access to FTA and its contractors to inspect and audit records and information, including
such records and Information the contractor or its subcontractors may regard as confidential or proprietary, related to performance of this contract In
accordance with 2 CFR § 200.337.

4. Access to the Sites of Perfomiance. The Contractor agrees to permit FTA and Its contractors access to the sites of performance under this contract In
accordance with 2 CFR § 200.337.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT(ADA)

The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended. 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which
requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act, and with
the Architectural Barriers act of 1968, as amended. 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to
persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act. In addition, the contractor agrees to comply with any and all applicable
requirements issued by the FTA, DOT, DOJ, U.S. GSA, U.S. EEOC, U.S. FCC, any subsequent amendments thereto and any other nondiscrimination
statute(s) that may apply to the Project.

BUS TESTING

The Contractor [Manufacturer] agrees to comply with the Bus Testing requirements under 49 U.S.C. 5318(e) and FTA's implementing regulation at 49 C.F.R.
part 665 to ensure that the requisite testing Is performed for all new bus models or any bus model with a major change In configuration or components, and
that the bus model has achieved a passing score. Upon completion of the testing, the contractor shall obtain a copy of the bus testing reports from the. ,
operator of the testing facility and make that report(s) publicly available prior to final acceptance of the first vehicle by the recipient.

BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS

The contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) and 49 C.F.R. part 661 and 2 CFR § 200.322 Domestic preferences for procurements, which
provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless all steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA funded projects are produced in the United
States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. § 661.7.

Build America, Buy America Act Construction materials used in the Project are subject to the domestic preference requirement of the Build America, Buy
America Ad. Pub. L. 117-58, dtv. G. tit IX, §§ 70911 - 70927 (2021). as implemented by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget's "Buy America
Preferences for Infrastructure Projects." 2 CFR Part 184. The Recipient acknowledges that this agreement is neither a waiver of § 70914(a) nor a finding
under § 70914(b). In accordance with 2 CFR § 184.2(a). the Redplent shall apply the standards of 49 CFR Part 661 to iron, steel, and manufactured
products.

Separate requirements for rolling stock are set out at 49 U.S.C. 5323(j){2KC), 49 U.S.C. § 5323(u) and 49 C.F.R. § 661.11. Domestic preferences for
procurements

The bidder or offerer must submit to the Agency the appropriate Buy America certification. Bids or offers that are not accompanied by a completed Buy
America certification will be rejeded as nonresponsive. For more information please see the FTA's Buy America webpage at
https://www.transit.dot.gov/buyamerica

CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS

The contractor agrees: /

a. to use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of any equipment, materials or commodities procured,
contraded for or otherwise obtained with funds granted, guaranteed, loaned, or advanced by the U.S. Govemment under this agreement, and which may be
transported by ocean vessel, shall be transported on privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels, if available. 46 U.S.C. § 55305, and U.S.
Maritime Administration regulations, "Cargo Preference - U.S.-Flag Vessels," 46 CFR Part 381.



b. to furnish within 20 days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of
loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, 'on-board' commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment
of cargo described in 46 CFR § 381.7(a)(1) shall be furnished to both the recipient (through the prime contractor in the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading)
arKj to the Division of Nation^ Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590; and

c. to Indude these requirements In all subcontracts issued pursuant to this contract when the subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, material,
or commodities by ocean vessel.

)
C.iANGES TO FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

Federal requirements that apply to the Redpient or the Award, the accompanying Under1yir)g Agreement and any Amendments thereto may change due to
changes in federal law, regulation, other requirements, or guidance, or changes in the Recipient's Underlying Agreement induding any information
incorporated by reference and made part of that Underlying Agreement and

Applicat^e changes to those federal requirements will apply to each Third Party Agreement and parties thereto at any tier.

CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The following Federal Civil Rights laws and regulations apply to all contracts.

The Contractor and any subcontractor agree to comply with all the requirements prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin of the
Title VI of the Civil Rights Action of 1964, as amended 52 U.S.C 2000d, and U.S. DOT regulation 'Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the
Department of Transportation - Effectuation of the Title VI of the Civil rights Act, *49 C.F. R. Part 21 and any implementing requirement FTA may issue.

1 Federal Equal Employment Opportunity (EEC) Requlrements.These indude, but are not limited to:

a) Nondiscrimination In Federal Public Transportation Programs. 49 U.S.C. § 5332, covering projects, programs, and activities financed under 49 U.S.C.
Chapter 53, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex (induding sexual orientation and gender identity), disability, or
age, and prohibits discrimination in employment or business opportunity.

b) Prohibition against Employment Discrimination. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Executive Order No. 11246,
'Equal Employment Opportunity,' September 24,1965, as amended, prohibit discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or
national origin.

2 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq. and Implementing
Federal regulations, 'Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Rnandal Assistance,' 49 C.F.R. part 25
prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.

lidlscrimlnation on the Basis of Age. The'Age Discrimination Act of 1975," as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 etseq., and Department of Health and
Huinan Services implementing regulations.'Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance," 45
C.F.R. part 90, prohibit discrimination by participants in federally assisted programs against individuals on the basis of age. The Age Discrimination in
Employment Act (ADEA), 29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq., and Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) implementing regulations, 'Age Discrimination
in Employment Act,' 29 C.F.R. part 1625, also prohibit employment discrimination against individuals age 40 and over on the basis of age.

4 Federal Protections for Individuals with Disabilities. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (ADA), 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.,
prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities in programs, activities, and services, and imposes specific requirements on public and
private entitles. Third party contractors must comply with their responsibilities under Titles I, It, III, iV, and V of the ADA in employment, public services, public
accommodations, telecommunications, and other provisions, many of which are subject to regulations issued by other Federal agencies.

Civil Rights and Equal Opportunity
The Agency is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As such, the Agency agrees to comply with all applicable Federal civil rights laws and implementing
regulations. Apart from Inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal laws or regulations, the Agency agrees to comply vrith the requirements of 49 U.S.C.
§ 5323(h) (3) by not using any Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory sp^flcations. Under this
Contra^, the Contractor shall at ail times comply with the following requirements and shall include these requirements in each subcontract entered into as
part thereof.

1. Nondiscrimination. In accordance with Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee
or applicant for employment t>ecause of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, or age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with
applicable Federal implementir>g regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.

2. Race, Color, Religion, National Origin, Sex. In accordance with Title Vil of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., and Federal
transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of
Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, 'Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equ^ Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. chapter
60, and Executive Order No. 11246, 'Equal Employment Opportunity in Federal Employment," September 24,1965,42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, as amended by
any later Executive Order that amends or supersedes it, referenced in 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, or sex (induding
sexual orientation and gender identity). Such action shall indude, but not be limited to, the following: employment, promotion, demotion or transfer,
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, induding apprenticeship.
In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

?  e. In accordance with the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-634, U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S.
L  ̂i) regulations, "Age Discrimination in Employment Act,'29 C.F.R. part 1625, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §6101 et
s^T, U.S. Health and Human Services regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Rnandal
Assistance," 45 C.F.R. part 90, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and
prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any Implementing requirements FTA may issue.

4.Dl8abilities. In accordance with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,



as amended 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 4151 et seq., and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. §
5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against individuals on the basis of disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any
implementing requirements FTA may issue.

5.Promotlng Free Speech and Religious Liberty. The Contractor shall ensure that Federal funding is expended in full accordance with the U.S.
Constitution, Federal Law, and statutory and public policy requirements; including, but not limited to, those protecting free speech, religious litierty. public
welfare, the environment, and prohibiting discrimination.

CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT )
The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Oean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671q) and the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to FTA and the Regional Office of the Environmental
Protection Agency. The following applies for contracts of amounts in excess of $150,000:

Clean Air Act

(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations Issued pursuant to the Oean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401
et seq.

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Agency and understands and agrees that the Agency vwll. In tum, report ea^ violatior^s required to
assure notification to the Agency, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each sutxxjntract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance
provided by FTA.

Ffideral Water Poliution Control Act

(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control AcL as
amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Agency and understands and agrees that the Agency will, in turn, report ea^ violation as required to
assure notification to the Agency, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance
provided by FTA."

U



CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

a. Applicability: This requirement applies to ail FTA grant and cooperative agreement programs.

b. Where applicable (see 40 U.S.C. §3701), all contracts awarded by non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations at
29 C.F.R. Part 5. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II.

\ier 40 U.S.C. § 3702, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the t>asis of a standard work week of
4u nours. Work In excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times
the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week.

d. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are appiicat>le to construction work and provide that no iatx>rer or mechanic must be required to work in
surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or
materials or atHdes ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of inteliigence.

e. The regulation at 29 C.F.R. § 5.5(b) provides the required contract clause concerning compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards
Act

Comoliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of
laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such latx>rer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she Is employed on such work to work in
excess of forty hours in sudi workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic
rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages, in the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the contractor
and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages, in addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United
States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such
liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the
clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section. In the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in
excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of
the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under
any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours
and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such
contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also
a "'"^use requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier sut>contracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by

jubcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section."

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

Debaiment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). A covered transaction (see 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220) must not he
entered into with any party listed on the govemmentwide exclusions In the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the 0MB
guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, 51 Fed. Reg. 6370,) and 12689(31 U.S.C. § 6101
note, 54 Fed. Reg. 34131), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or othenwse
excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. The Recipient
agrees to include, and require each Third Party Participant to include, a similar provision in each lower tier covered transaction, ensuring that each
lower tier Third Party Participant

(1) Complies with federal debarment and suspension requirements; and

(2) Reviews the SAM at https://www.sam.gov, if necessary to comply with U.S. DOT regulations, 2 CFR Part 1200.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)

(Does not apply to projects hilly funded by the Tribal Transportation Program (TTP).)

It is the policy of the Agency and the United States Department of Transportation ("DOT) that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises ("DBE's"), as defined
herein and in the Federal regulations published at 49 C.F.R. part 26, shall have an equal opportunity to participate in DOT-asslsted contracts.

The contractor or sut>contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract The contractor
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out
these requirements is a material breach of this contract which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the Agency deems
appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:

' ̂Ithholding nronthty progress payments:
(2) Assessing sanctions;

(3) Liquidated damages; and/or

(4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-responsible. 49 C.F.R. § 26.13(b).



Prime contractors are required to pay subcontractors for satisfactory performance of their contracts no later than 30 days from receipt of each payment the
Agency makes to the prime contractor. 49 C.F.R. § 26.29(a).

Finaiiy, for contracts with defined DBE contract goals, the contractor shall utilize the specific DBEs listed unless the contractor obtains the Agency's written
consent: and that, unless the Agency's consent is provided, the contractor shall not be entitled to any payment for work or material unless It is performed or
supplied by the listed DBE. 49 C.F.R. § 26.53(0 (1)-

ENERGY CONSERVATION

The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency, which are contained in the state energy conservation
plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Consenration Act (42 U.S.C.§ 6201).

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, cdor, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gertder identity, or national origin. Such action shall indude, but not t>e limited
to the following: Employment upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of
compensation: and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination dause.

(2) The contractor will, in all solidtations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will
receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

(3) The contractor will not discharge or In any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or
applicant has Inquired about, discussed, or dlsdosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall
not apply to instances In which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such
employee's essential job functions disdoses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to Individuals who do not otherwise have access to
such information, unless such disdosure is in response to a forma! complaint or charge. In furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action,
induding an investigation conduded by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.

(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contrad or
understanding, a notice to be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contrador's commitments
under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment

(5) The contrador will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the
Secretary of Labor.

(6) The contrador will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and by the rules, regulations, and ^
orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and wall permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the
Secretary of Labor for purposes of Investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(7) In the event of the contrador's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination dauses of this contrad or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this
contrad may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contrador may l>e dedared Ineligible for furtiier Government contracts in
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and such other sanctions may be Imposed and remedies Invoked
as provided In Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(8) The contrador will Indude the provisions of paragraphs (1) forough (8) In every subcontrad or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or
orders of the Secretary of Labor Issued pursuant to section 294 of Executive Order 11246 of Septemt)er 24,1965, so that such provisions w/DI t>e binding
upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with resped to any subcontrad or purchase order as may be directed by the
Secretary of Labor as a means of enfordng such provisions induding sanctions for noncompliance: Provid^, however, that in the event the contrador
becomes involved in, or Is threatened with, litigation with a subcontrador or vendor as a result of such direction, the contrador noay request the United
States to enter into such litigation to proted the interests of the United States.

FLY AMERICA

a) Definitions. As used in this dause—
1) 'International air transportation" means transportation by air between a place in the United States and a place outside the United States or between two
places both of which are outside the United States. 2) "United States' means the 50 States, the DIstrid of Columbia, and outlying areas. 3) "U.S.-flag air
carrier" means an air carrier holding a certificate uivJer 49 U.S.C. Chapter 411.

b) When Federal fonds are used to fond travel. Section 5 of the Intemational Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Ad of 1974 (49 U.S.C. 40118) (Fly
America Ad) requires contractors, Agencys, and others use U.S.-flag air carriers for U.S. Govemment-financed Intemational air transportation of personnel
(and their personal effects) or property, to the extent that service by those carriers is available. It requires the Comptroller General of the United States, in the
absence of satisfedory proof of the necessity for foreign-flag air transportation, to disallow expenditures from fonds, appropriated or otherwise established
for the account of the United States, for Intemational air transportation secured aboard a foreign-flag air carrier if a U.S.-flag air carrier is available to provide
such services.

c) If available, the Contrador, in performing work under this contrad, shall use U.S.-flag carriers for intemational air transportation of personnel (and their
personal effects) or property.

d) In the event that the Contrador selects a carrier other than a U.S.-flag air carrier for intemational air transportation, the Contractor shall indude a
statement on vouchers Involving such transportation essentially as follows:

Statement of Unavailability of U-S.-Rao Air Carriers

Intemational air transportation of persons (and their personal effects) or property by U.S.-flag air carrier was not available or It was necessary to use foreign-
flag air carrier service for ti>e following reasons. See FAR § 47.403. [State reasons]:



e) Contractor shall include the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (e), in each sutxontract or purchase under this contract that may involve
international air transportation.

INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS

The provisions within include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required under the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR § 200), whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. Ml contractual provisions

^"red by DOT. detailed In 2 CFR § 200 or as amended by 2 CFR § 1201, or the most recent version of FTA Circular 4220.1 are hereby incorporated by
I, . ence. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all mandated terms shall be deemed to control In the event of a conflict with other provisions
contained In this Contract The Contractor shall not perform any act, fall to perform any act, or refljse to comply with any request which would cause a
violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES

The Recipient and Contractor acknoNvledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Govemment in or approval of the solicitation or
award of the underlying Contract absent the express written consent by the Federal Govemment the Federal Govemment is not a party to this Contract and
shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Recipient, Contractor or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any
matter resulting from the underlying Contract. The Contractor agrees to include the atXDve clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with
Federal assistance provided by the FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to
its provisions.

NOTICE TO FTA AND U.S. DOT INSPECTOR GENERAL OF INFORMATION RELATED TO FRAUD, WASTE,

ABUSE. OR OTHER LEGAL MATTERS

If a cunent or prospective legal matter that may affect the Federal Govemment emerges, the Recipient must promptly notify the FTA Chief Counsel and FTA
Regional Counsel for the Region in which the Recipient is located. The Recipient must include a similar notification requirement in its Third Party
Agreements and must require each Third Party Participant to include an equivalent provision in its subagreements at every tier, for any agreement that is a
"covered transaction" according to 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220.

(1) The types of legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major dispute, breach, default, litigation, or naming the Federal
Govemment as a party to litigation or a legal disagreement In any forum for any reason.

(2) Matters that may affect the Federal Govemment include, but are not limited to, the Federal Govemmenfs interests in the Award, the accompanying
Underlying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto, or the Federal Government's administration or enforcement of federal laws, regulations, and
requirements.

(3) The Recipient must promptly notify the U.S. DOT Inspector General in addition to the FTA Chief Counsel or Regional Counsel for the Region in which the
P' -'"Dient is located, if the Recipient has knowledge of potential fraud, waste, or abuse occumng on a Project receiving assistance from FTA. The

Wtion provision applies if a person has or may have submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et seq., or has or may have
committed a criminal or dvil violation of law pertaining to such matters as fraud, conflict of interest, bril>ery, gratuity, or similar misconduct This responsibility
occurs whether the Project is subject to this Agreement or another agreement between the Recipient and FTA, or an agreement involving a principal, officer,
employee, agent or Third Party Participant of the Recipient It also applies to subcontractors at any tier. Knowledge, as used In this paragraph. Includes, but
is not limited to, knowledge of a criminal or cMI investigation by a Federal, state, or local law enforcement or other investigative agency, a criminal indictment
or civil complaint, or probat>le cause that could support a criminal indictment or any oti>er credible information in the possession of the Recipient.

PRE-AWARD AND POST-DELIVERY AUDITS OF ROLLING STOCK PURCHASES

(Does not apply to projects My funded by the Tribal Transportation Program (TTP).)

The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5323(m) and FTA's implementing regulation at 49 C.F.R. part 663. The Contractor shall comply with
the Buy America certification(s) submitted with its proposal/bid. The Contractor agrees to participate and cooperate in any pre-award and post-delivery
audits performed pursuant to 49 C.F.R. part 663 and related FTA guidance.

PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS

The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT
regulations, 'Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project Upon execution of the underlying contract, the
Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfolness and accuracy of any statement It has made. It makes. It may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the
underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the
Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the
Federal Govemment resen/es the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civfl Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal
Govemment deems appropriate.

The Contractor also acknowledges that if It makes, or causes to t>e made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent dalm, statement, submission, or certification to
the Federal Govemment under a contract connect^ with a project that Is financed In whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA
under the authority of 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, the Govemment reserves the right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5323(1) on the
Contractor, to the extent the Federal Govemment deems appropriate.

T ■ "fontractor agrees to indude the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It Is
1^ /r agreed that the dauses shall not be modified, except to Identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.



PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT.

a) Recipients and subredpients atB prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

1) Procure or obtain covered telecommunications equipment or services;
2) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain covered telecommunications equipment or services; or
3) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain covered telecommunications equipment or services.

(b) As described in section 889 of Public Law 115-232, "covered telecommunications equipment or services" means any of the following:

(1) Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or afDiiate of such entities);

(2) For the purpose of put>lic safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security
purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology
Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);

(3) Telecommunications or video sun/eiiiance services provided by such entities or using such equipment;

(4) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with
the Director of the National intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or
otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country;

(c) For the purposes of this section, "covered telecommunications equipment or services" also include systems that use covered telecommunications
equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.

(d) in implementing the prohibition under section 889 of Public Law 115-232, heads of executive agencies administering loan, granL or subsidy programs
must prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for tfiose
affected entities to transition from covered telecommunications equipment or services, to procure replacement equipment or services, and to ensure that
communications service to users and customers is sustained.

(e) When the recipient or subrecipient accepts a loan or grant, it is certifying that it will comply with the prohibition on covered telecommunications
equipment and services in this section. The recipient or subredpient is not required to certify that funds will not be expended on covered
telecommunications equipment or services beyond the certification provided upon accepting the loan or grant and those provided upon submitting payment
requests and financial reports.

(f) For additional information, see section 889 of Public Law 115-232 and 200.471.

PROMPT PAYMENT

(Does not apply to projects fully funded by the Tribal Transportation Program (TTP).) , ^
The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later than 30 d^.. . .
after the contractor's receipt of payment for that work in addition, the contractor is required to return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within
30 days after the subcontractor's work related to this contract is satisfactorily completed.

The contractor must promptly notify the Agency, whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete Its
work and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The contractor may not
terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of the Agency.

RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

Conditions on use of funds.

(a) No appropriated funds may be expended by the recipient of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Memlier of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection vrith any of the following covered Federal actions: the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant the making
of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal
contract grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(b) Each person who requests or receives from an agency a Federal contract grant loan, or cooperative agreement shall file with that agency a
certification, that the person has not made, and will not make, any payment prohibited by paragraph (a) of this section.

(c) Each person who requests or receives from an agency a Federal contract, grant loan, or a cooperative agreement shall file with that agency a
disclosure form if such person has made or has agreed to make any payment using nonappropriated funds (to include profits ffom any covered Federal
action), which would be prohibited under paragraph (a) of this section if paid for with appropriated funds.

(d) Each person who requests or receives from an agency a commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan shall file with that
agency a statement, whettter that person has made or has agreed to make any payment to influence or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with that loan insurance or
guarantee.

(e) Each person who requests or receives from an agency a commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan shall file with that
agency a disclosure form if that person has made or has agreed to ntake any payment to influence or attempt to Influence an officer or employee of any.
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with that loan insurance \
guarantee. ^

Certification and disclosure.

(a) Each person shall file a certification, and a disclosure form. If required, with each submission that initiates agency consideration of such person for



(1) Award of a Federal contract, grant, or cooperative agreement exceeding $100,000; or

(2) An award of a Federal loan or a commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan exceeding $150,000.

(b) Each person shall file a certification, and a disclosure form, if required, upon receipt by such person of:

(1) A Federal contract grant or cooperative agreement exceeding $100,000; or

'j2} A Federal loan or a commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan exceeding $150,000,

Unless such person previously filed a certification, and a disclosure form, If required, under paragraph (a) of this section.

(c) Each person shall file a disclosure form at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs any event that requires disclosure or that materially
affects the accuracy of the information contained in any disclosure form previously filed by such person under paragraphs (a) or (b) of this section. An event
that materially affects the accuracy of the information reported includes:

(1) A cumulative Increase of $25,000 or more in the amount paid or expected to be paid for influencing or attempting to influence a covered Federal
action; or

(2) A change in the person(s) or indtvidual(s} influencing or attempting to influence a covered Federal action; or,

(3) A change in the officer(s}, employee(s), or Memt>er(s) contacted to influence or attempt to Influence a covered Federal action.

(d) Any person who requests or receives from a person referred to in paragraphs (a) or (b) of this section:

(1) A subcontract exceeding $100,000 at any tier under a Federal contract;

(2) A subgrant, contract, or subcontract exceeding $100,000 at any tier under a Federal grant;

(3) A contract or subcontract exceeding $100,000 at any tier under a Federal loan exceeding $150,000; or,

(4) A contract or subcontract exceeding $100,000 at any tier under a Federal cooperative agreement

Shall file a certification, and a disclosure form, If required, to the next tier above.

(e) Ail disclosure forms, but not certifications, shall be forwarded from tier to tier until received by the person referred to in paragraphs (a) or (b) of this
section. That person shall forward all disclosure forms to the agency.

(f) Any certification or disclosure form filed under paragraph (e) of this section shall be treated as a material representation of foot upon which all receiving
tiers shall rely. All liability arising from an erroneous representation shall be borne solely by the tier filing that representation and shall not k>e shared by any
tier to which the erroneous representation is fooArarded. Submitting an enoneous certification or disclosure constitutes a foilure to file the required
certification or disclosure, respectively. If a person foils to file a required certification or disclosure, the United States may pursue all available remedies,
i- ^ing. those authorized by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code.
(g; For awards and commitments in process prior to December 23,1989, but not made before that date, certifications shall be required at award or
commitment, covering activities occurring between December 23,1989, and the date of award or commitment. However, for awards and commitments in
process prior to the December 23,1989 effective date of these provisions, but not made before December 23,1989, disclosure forms shall not be required
at time of award or commitment but shall be filed within 30 days.

(h) No reporting is required for an activity paid for with appropriated funds if that activity is allowable under either subpart 6 or C.

SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES

Seat Belt Use

The Contractor is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its employees and other personnel that operate
company-owned vehicles, company rented vehicles, or personally operated vehicles. The terms "company-owned" and "company-leased" refer to vehicles
owned or leased either by the Contractor or Agency.

Distracted Driving
The Contractor agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text
messaging while using an electronic device supplied by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor owns, leases, or
rents, or a privately-owned vehicle when on oflldal business in connection with the work performed under this Contract.

SIMPLIFIED ACQUISITION THRESHOLD

Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which Is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and
the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. § 1908, or otherwise set by law, must address administrative,
contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.
(Note that the simplified acquisition threshold determines the procurement procedures that must t>e employed pursuant to 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317-200.327.
The simplified acquisition threshold does not exempt a procurement from other eligibBity or processes requirements that may apply. For example. Buy
America's eligibility arvJ process requirements apply to any procurement in excess of $150,000.49 U.S.C. § 5323(j)(13).

SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

A-^''es to States-

a:-. Jthe extent required under federal law, the State, as the Recipient, agrees to provide the following Information about federal assistance awarded for Its
State Program, Project, or related activities:

(1) The Identification of FTA as the federal agency providing the federal assistance for a State Program or Project;
(2) The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number of the program from which the federal assistance for a State Program or Project is ^



authorized; and
(3) The amount of federal assistance FTA has provided for a State Program or Project,

b. Documents - The State agrees to provide the information required under this provision in the following documents:

(1) applications for federal assistance,
(2) requests for proposals or solicitations,
(3) forms,
(4) notlficatJons,
(5) press releases,
(6) other publications.

TERMINATION

Termination for Convenience fGenera! Provision^

The Agency may terminate ttiis contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to tfie Contractor when it is in the Agency's best interest. The
Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract dose-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall
promptly submit its termination dafm to Agency to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property In Its possession belonging to Agency, the
Contractor will account for the same, and dispose of It In the manner Agency directs.

Termination for Default fBreach or Cause! fGeneral Provision^

If the Contractor does not deliver supplies In accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or if the contract Is for services, the Contractor fails to perform
in the manner called for In die contract, or if the Contractor falls to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the Agency may terminate this contract
for default Termination shall be effected by serving a Notice of Termination on the Contractor setting forth the manner in which the Contractor is in default.
The Contractor will be paid only the contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth In the contract. If it is later determined by the Agency that the Contractor had an excusable reason for r>ot performing, such as a strike,
fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of the Contractor, the Agency, after setting up a new delivery of perfomiance
schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a Termination for Convenience.

Ooportunltv to Cure fGeneral Provision^

The Agency, in Its sole discretion may. in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor [an appropriately short period of time] In which
to cure the defect. In such case, the Notice of Termination will state the time period In which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If Contractor fails to remedy to Agency's satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within [10 days] after
receipt by Contractor of written notice from Agency setting forth the nature of said breach or default. Agency shall have the right to terminate the contract
without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude Agency from also pursuing all available
remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

Waiver of Remedies for anv Breach

In the event that Agency elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this contract, such wraiver by Agency
shall not limit Agency's remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other covenant, term, or condition of this contract.

Termination for Convenience fProfesslonal or Transit Service Contracts)

The Agency, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the Agency's interest If this contract is terminated, the Agency
shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of termination.

Termination for Default fSuoplies and Serviced

If the Contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services within the time specified in this contract or any extension, or if the Contractor fails to
comply with any other provisions of this contract, the Agency may terminate this contract for default The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the
Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth in this contract If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract
obligations. It Is determined that the Contractor was not in default the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been
issued for the convenience of the Agency.

Termination for Default (Transportation SetvicesI

If the Contractor fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the services, including delivery services, within the time specified in this contract or any
extension, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of tfiis contract, the Agency may terminate this contract for default The Agency shall
terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for
services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth In this contract.

If this contract is terminated whOe the Contractor has possession of Agency goods, the Contractor shall, upon direction of the Agency, protect and preserve
the goods until surrendered to the Agency or its agent The Contractor and Agency shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods.
Failure to agree on an amount will be resolved under the Dispute dause.

If. after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall
be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Agency.

Termination for Default fConstruction)

If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute tiie work or any separable part, with the diligence that will ensure its completion within the time spedfied in this
contract or any extension or fails to complete the work within this time, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provision of this contract. Agency
may terminate this contract for default The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default
In this event, the Agency may take over the work and compete it by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances,
and plant on the wor1< site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the Agency resulting from the
Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. Th'®
liability indudes any increased costs incurred by the Agency in completing the work.

The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor shall the Contractor be charged with damages under this dause if: 1. The delay in completing
the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes indude: acts
of God, acts of Agency, acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with Agency, efrfdemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight
embargoes; and 2. The Contractor, within [10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies Agency In writing of the causes of delay. If, in the judgment of



Agency, the delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of Agency shall t>e final and conclusive for the parties, but
subject to appeal under the Disputes clause(s} of this contract 3. If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor
was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as If the termination had been issued for the
convenience of Agency.

Termination for Convenience or Default fArchitect and EnoineerinQl

The Agency may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the Agency's convenience or tiecause of the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract
obligations. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the
'  "'nation. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall (1) Immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2)
"c ,'er to the Agency's Contracting Officer all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials
accumulated In performing this contract, whether completed or in process. Agency has a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and Irrevocatrle license to reproduce,
publish or otherwise use, all such data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials.

If the termination is for the convenience of the Agency, the Agency's Contracting Officer shall make an equitaWe adjustment in the contract price but shall
allow no anticipated profit on unperfonned services.

If the termination is for failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations, the Agency may complete the work by contact or othenwise and the
Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost Incun-ed by the Agency.

If, after termination for failure to fulfil) contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall
be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of Agency

Termination for Convenience or Default fCost-Tvoe Contracts)

The Agency may terminate this contract, or any portion of it, by serving a Notice of Termination on the Contractor. The notice shall state whether the
termination is for convenience of Agency or for the default of the Contractor. If the termination is for default, the notice shall state the manner in which the
Contractor has failed to perfomi the requirements of the contract. The Contractor shall account for any property in its possession paid for from fonds
received from the Agency, or property supplied to the Contractor by the Agency. If the termination is for default, the Agenr^ may fix the fee. If the contract
provides for a fee, to be paid the Contractor in proportion to the value, if any, of work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly
submit Its termination daim to the Agency and the parties shall negotiate tiie termination settlement to be paid the Contractor.

If the termination Is for the convenience of Agency, the Contractor shall be paid Its contract dose-out costs, and a fee. If the contract provided for payment of
a fee, in proportion to the work performed up to the time of termination.

If, after serving a Notice of Termination for Default, the Agency determines that the Contrador has an excusable reason for not performing, the Agency, after
setting up a new work schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a Termination for Convenience.

VIOLATION AND BREACH OF CONTRACT

Disputes;
Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract that are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the authorized
reoresentative of the agency. This dedsion shall be final and condusive unless within (10] days from the date of receipt of its copy, the Contractor mails or

"wise furnishes a written appeal to the agencies authorized representative. In connection with any such appeal, the Contrador shall be afforded an
c. jrtunity to be heard and to offer evidence In support of its position. The dedsion of the agendes authorized representative shall t>e binding upon the
Contrador and the Contrador shall abide be the dedsion.

Performance during Dispute:
Unless otherwise direded by the agendes authorized representative, contractor shall continue performance under ttiis contrad while matters in dispute are
being resolved.

Claims for Damages:
StK>uld either party to the contrad suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any ad or omission of the party or of any of his employees,
agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a daim for damages therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after
the first observance of such injury or damage.

Remedies:

Unless this contrad provides othenwise, all daims, counterdaims, disputes and other matters In question between the agendes authorized representative
and contrador arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be dedded by arbitration If the parties mutijally agree, or In a court of competent
jurisdiction within the State In which the Agency Is located.

Rights and Remedies:
Duties and obligations Imposed by the contrad documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and r>ot a limitation of any
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to ad by the Agency or contractor shall constitute a
waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the contrad, nor shall any such action or failure to ad constitute an approval of or acquiescence In
any breach thereunder, except as may be spedficaily agreed in writing.

OTHER RECOMMENDED CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

CONFORMANCE WITH ITS NATIONAL ARCHITECTURE

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) projects shall conform to the National ITS Architecture and starxJards pursuant to 23 CFR § 940. Conformance with
the National ITS Architecture is interpreted to mean the use of the National ITS Architecture to develop a regional ITS architecture In support of Integration
anH the subsequent adherence of all ITS projects to that regional ITS architecture. Development of the regional ITS architecture should be consistent with

ansportation planning process for Statewide and Metropolitan Transportation Planning (49 CFR Part 613 and 621).

FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS

(1) The contrador certifies that it:



(a) Does not have any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have
lapsed, and that Is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability; and

(b) Was not convicted of the felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

If the contractor cannot so certify, the Recipient will refer the matter to FTA and not enter into any Third Party Agreement with the Third Party Participant
without FTA's written approval.

(2) Row-Down. The Recipient agrees to require the contractor to flow this requirement down to participants at all lower tiers, without regard to the value
any subagreement.

SEVERABILITY

The Contractor agrees that if any provision of this agreement or any amendment thereto is determined to be invalid, then the remaining provisions thereof
that conform to federal laws, regulations, requirements, and guidance will continue In effect.

TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS

The contractor agrees that It and Its employees that participate in the Recipients Award, may not:

(a) Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time ttiat the Recipient's Award is In effect;

(b) Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the Recipient's Award is in effect; or

(c) Use forced labor in the performance of the Recipients Award or subagreements thereunder.

J



Federal Certifications

CERTIFICATION AND RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

_hereby certify
(Name and title of official)

On behalf of that:
(Name of Bidder/Company Name)

No federal appropriated funds have b>een paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making
of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Meml>er of
Congress in connection with the federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," In accordance with its instructions.

• The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers
(including sub-contracts, sub-grants and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of feet upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into.
ubmission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Any person who

.dils to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such
failure..

Name of Bidder/Company Name:.

Type or print name:

Signature of authorized representative: Date.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION
(NONPROCUREMENT)

Recipients, contractors, and subcontractors that enter into covered transactions are required to verify that the entity (as well as its principals and
affiliates) with which they propose to contract or subcontract Is not excluded or disqualified. This is done by: (a) checking the SAM exclusions: (b)
collecting a certification from that person (found below); or (c) adding a clause or condition to the contract or subcontract.

Instructlona for CftrHflcatlon: Signing below Indicates the prospective lower tier participant is providing the signed certification.

(1) It will comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations, "Nonprocurement Suspension and Debannent," 2 CFRpart 1200, vvliich adopts and
supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. 0MB) "Guidelines to Agencies on Govemraentwide Debannent and Suspension
(Nonprocurement)," 2 CFR part 180,

(2) To the best of its knowledge and belief, that its Principals and Subrccipients at the first tier

a. Are eligible to participate in covered transactions of any Federal department or agency and are not presently:

1. Debarred,

2. Suspended,

3. Proposed for debament,

4. Declared ineligible,

5. Voluntarily excluded, or

6. Disqualified

b. Its management has not within a three-year period preceding its latest application or proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against
any of them for

1. Commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local)
transaction, or contract under a public transaction,

2. Violation of any Federal or State antitrust statute, or,
3. Commission ofembezzlement, theft, foigery, bn^beiy, falsification or destruction of records, making any false statement, or receiving stolen property,

c. It is not presently indicted for, or otherwise crimmally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the
offenses listed in the preceding subsection 2.b of this Certification,

d. It has not had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default within a three-year period preceding this
Certification,

e. If, at a later time, it receives any information that contradicts the statements ofsubsections 2.a - 2.d above, it will pron^tly provide that information to
FTA,

f. It will treat each lower tier contract or lower tier subcontract under its Project as a covered lower tier contract for purposes of 2 CFR part 1200 and 2
CFRpart 180 ifiC

1. Equals or exceeds $25,000,

2. Is for audit services, or,

3. Requires tbe consent of a Federal official, and

g. It will require that each covered lower tier contractor and subcontractor

1. Comply and &cilitate compliance with the Federal requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200, and
2. Assure that each lower tier participant in its Project is not presently declared by any Federal department or agency to be:

a. Debarred from participarioa in its federally funded Project,
b. Suspended from participation in its federally funded Project,
c. Proposed for debannent from participation in its federally funded Project.
d. Declared ineligible to participate in its federally funded Project,
e. Voluntarily excluded from participation in its federally funded Project, or
f. Disqualified fiom participation in its federally funded Project, and

(3) It will provide a written explanation as indicated on a page attached in FTA's TrAMS platform or the Signature Page if it or any of its principals, including any
of its first tier Subrccipients or its Third-Party Participants at a lower tier, is unable to certify compliance with the preceding statements in this Certification Group.,

Certification

Contractor:

Signature of Authorized Official: Date ! ^

Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official: —



BUS TESTING CERTIFICATION

The undersigned bidder [Contractor/Manufacturer] certifies that the vehicle modei or vehide models offered in this bid submission complies with 49
U.S.C 5318(e) and FTA's implementing regulation at 49 CFR Part 665.

A copy of the test report (for each bid ITEM) prepared by the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) Attoona, Pennsytvania Bus Testing Center is
attached to this certification and is a true and correct copy of the test report as prepared by the fedlity.

The undersigned understands that misrepresenting the testing status of a vehide acquired with Federal finandal assistance may subject the
undersigned to civil penalties as outlined in the U.S. Department of Transportation's regulation on Program Fraud Civil Remedies. 49 CFR Part 31. In
addition, the undersigned understands that FTA may suspend or debar a manufacturer under the procedures in 49 CFR Part 29.,

Name of Bidder/Company Name;.

Type or print name:

Signature of authorized representative:.

Date of Signature: / 1^



PRE-AWARD BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATION

(Does not apply to projects fully funded by the Tribal Transportation Program (TTP).)

As required by 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart B, ^ ^the redolent) is satisfied that the

/ehides to be purchased. . . . . . ■ . (number and description of vehides) from

.  . . ^ ■ ' . ^ (the manufacturer), meet the requirements of

49 U.S.C. 5323(j), as amended. The redpient, or its appointed auditor

1  ■ . ■. ■ ■ . (the auditor - not the manufecturer or its

agent), has reviewed documentation provided by the manu^cturer, which lists (1) the proposed component and subcomponent parts of the vehides

identified by manufacturer, country of origin, and cost; and (2) the proposed location of the final assembly point for the vehides, induding a

description of the activities that will take place at the final assembly point and the cost of final assembly.

Date: ' ■ - • . ■ . - ■ ■

Redpient Authorized Signature:

Print Name: • •

Titie:

PRE-AWARD BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATE OF NON-COMPLIANCE

As required by 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart B, ' ! ^ fthe redolent^ keeps on file a certification

'Jiat there is a letter from FTA which grants a waiver to the roliing stock to be purchased,
V..- • :r ,> • -V (number and description of rolling stock), from the Buy

America requirements under 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(A),(2)(B), or (2)(D), as amended.

Date: "1 ;

Redpient Authorized Signature:

Print Name: . ■

Tttle:



PRE-AWARD FMVSS COMPUANCE CERTIFICATION

As required by 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart D, (tf>e redpient)

certifles that It received, at the pre-award stage, a copy of

's (the manufecturer) sdf-certllicatlon ^
Information staUng that the vehldes,

(number and descr4>tion of vehldes). wffl comply with the relevanl Federal Motor Vehide Safety Standards Issued by the Natior^ Highway Traffic Safety Administration in 49 CFR part 571.

Dale: --

Recipient Authorized Signature:.

Print Name:

nae:

PRBAWARD CERTIFICATION OF FMVSS INAPPUCABUJTY

As required t>y 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart D.:
.(the redpient)

certifies that It received at the pre-award stage, a statement from

(the manufecturer) Indicating

that tfte vehldes..

(number and description of vehldes). will not be sub^ to the Federal Motor Vehide Safety Standards Issued by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration in 49 CFR part 571.

Date: —

Redpient Authorized Signature:.

Print Name:

ntie:



PRE-AWARD PURCHASER'S REQUIREMENTS CERTIFiCATiON

As required by 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart B, ' (the recipient) certifies that the

vehides to be purchased. ^ - ■■■ (number and description of vehides) from,

1  ■ • ■ - - (the manufacturer), are the same product

described in the redoient's solidtation spedfication and that the proposed manufacturer is a responsible manufacturer with the capability to produce

vehides that meet the specifications set forth in the solidtation.

Date: ^ • .. ' ^

Redplent Authorized Signature;

Print Name: .

Title: . ■ .



CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH BUY AMERICA ROLLING STOCK REQUIREMENTS

The bidder or offerer hereby certifies that It will comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 53230). arid the applicable regulations In 49 CFR § 661.11

Date : : ■ ''' ^

Signature:

Company:

Print Name:

Title:

CERTIFICATE OF NON-COMPUANCE WITH BUY AMERICA ROLUNG STOCK REQUIREMENTS

The bidder or offerer hereby certifies that it cannot comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 53230) b'Jt qualify for an exemption to the
requirement consistent with 49 U.S.C. 53230K2). as amended, and the applicable regulations in 49 CFR § 661.7.

Date : • ■ ^

Signature: • ^

Company: • . . ' •

Print Name: ^

Title: • ' • :

J



ON-SITE MANUFACTURER INSPECTION COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

(Post-Delivefy purchaser's requirement, in compliance with the federal requirements of 49 U.S.C. Section 5323(m))

QN-StTE MANUFACTURER INSPECTION COMPUANCE CERTIFICATION

'polling Stock Procurements for more than 10 vehicles for areas >200,000 In population)

As required by 49 CFR Part 663-Subpart C. the

(Redpienfs name)

Certifies that a resident inspector,

(Name of inspector)

Was at ■
(the manufacturer's)

manufacturing site during the period of manufacture of the buses,

(description of buses).

The inspector visually inspecting the buses, the - ^ ; (the recipient) has reviewed

the inspection documentation, maintains a copy of this report, and certifies that the buses meet the contract specifications.

ON^ITE MANUFACTURER INSPECTION COMPUANCE CERTIFICATION

(Rolling Stock Procurements for more than 20 vehicles for areas < 200,000 In population)

As required by 49 CFR Part 663-Subpart C, the

>  (Recipient's name)

Certifies that a resident inspector,

(Name of inspector)

Was at . - - . . ^ ^ ^ -
(the n^anufecturer's)

manu^cturlng site during the period of manufocture of the buses,

(description of buses).

The Irwpectof srisually inspecting the buses, the • - - • - - (the recipient) has reviewed the
inspection documentation, maintains a copy of this report, and certifies that the buses meet the contract specifications.

Sigriature • . - ' Date / • /

Title ̂ ^ • • • • .' -



TRANSIT VEHICLE MANUFACTURER (TVM) DBE CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105(0 of the Surface Transportation Assistance Act of 1982, each bidder for this contract must certify that It has
complied with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26.49, regarding the participation of DIsadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) in FTA assisted
procurements of transit vehicles. Absent this certification, properly completed and signed, a bid shall be deemed non-responsive.

Certiflcation:

i hereby certify, for the bidder named below, that it has compiled with the provisions of 49 CFR Part 26.49 and that I am duly authorized by said bidder
to make this certification.

BinPER/COMPANY

Name of Bidder/Company

Signature of Representative

Type or Print Name

Title Date



POST-DELIVERY BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATION

(Does not apply to projects fully funded by die Tribal Transportation Program (TTP).)

As required by 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart C, ' ■ . -A." ' ■ - {the recipient) certifies that it is
satisfied that the vehicles received, ■ . '' " ^ •;.' (number and description of vehicles) from
\  (the manufacturer), meet the requirements
'f 49 U.S.C. 53230). as amended. The recipient. or its appointed auditor - C-'. ^
(the auditor - not the manu^cturer or its agent), has revievred documentation provided by the manufecturer, which lists (1) tfie actual component
and subcomponent parts of the vehicles identified by the manu^cturer, country of origin, and cost; and (2) the actual location of the final assembly
point for the vehicles, including a description of the activities that took place at the final assembly (^nt and the cost of final assembly.

Date: ^ •

Recipient Authorized Signature:

Print Name: ^

Title :

POST-DELIVERY BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATE OF NON-COMPLIANCE

As required by 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart C, ^ (the recipient) certifies that there is a
letter from FTA syhich grants a vyaiyer to ̂ e vehicles receiyed,
• V- ^ .. ^ (fihariufacturernumber and description of vehicles) frorri
the^Buy.Arherica requirements urider 49 U.S.C. 5323(j), as amended. / - ,

Date: -. •-

Recipient Authorized Signature: ^

Print Name: • - ' . ^ •... ■ .. . - .!•

W:



POST-DELIVERY FMVSS COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

As required by 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart D. ^ ' ■' ' (the recipient) certifies that it received,

at the post-deiivery stage, a copy of "... . - - ' • • the (manufacturer) self-certificafon

information stating that the vehides. . . ■ ■' -. i .- (numljei

and description of vehides), comply wftti the relevant Federal Motor Vehide Safety Standards Issued by the National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration in 49 CFR part 571.

Date:

Redpient Authorized Signature:

Print Name:

Title:

POST-DELIVERY CERTIFICATION OF FMVSS INAPPUCABIUTY

As required by 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart D, (the recipient) certifies that it received at
the pre-award stage, a statement from , -■ V' ^
manufacturer) indicating that the vehides. - " - - • . . (number and description of vehides). are not
subject to the Federal Motor Vehide Safety Standards issued by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration in 49 CFR part 571.

Date:

Redpient Authorized Signature:

Print Name:

Title:



POST-DELIVERY PURCHASER'S REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION

As required by 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart C,

inspector,

{the recipient) certifies that a resident

iianufacturer), was at

manufacturino site during the period of manufacbjre of the vehicles,.

(the resident inspector - not an agent or employee of the

^ \ 's (themanufacturer),

(number and

description of the vehicles). The inspector monitored manufacturing and completed a report on the manufecture of the vehicles and provided

accurate records of all vehicle construction activities. The report addresses how the construction and operation of the vehicles ̂Ifili the contract

specifications. After reviewing the report, visually inspecting the vehicles, and performance testing the vehicles, the recipient certifies that the vehicles

meet the contract specifications.

Date:

Recipient Authorized Signature:

Print Name:

Title;

POST-DEUVERY PURCHASER'S REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION

As required by 49 CFR part 663 - Subpart C, after visually inspecting and road testing the contract vehicles,

•  i-v*-.- : \ 'v. - • > (the recipient) certifies that the vehicles,

■  ■, -n;,,I. ,; ^ (number and description of vehicles) from

(the manufacturerVmeet the contract specifications.

Date:

Recipient Authorized Signature:

Print Name:

Title:
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The following clauses are for inclusion into procurement documents, but can also be inserted into contractual agreements. However, additional clauses and
certification ntay be required for contractual agreements.



ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

1. Record Retention. ITie Contractor will retain, and wQl require its subcontractors of all tiers to retain, complete and readily accessible records related in
whole or in part to the contract, including, but not limited to, data, documents, reports, statistics, leases, subcontracts, arrangements, other third party
Contracts of any type, and supporting materials related to those records, (a) A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the bid price. The
'bid guarantee' must consist of a firm commitment such as a bid t>ond, certified check, or other negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance
that the bidder will, upon acceptance of the bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified. ' |

2. Retention Period. The Contractor agrees to comply with the record retention requirements in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.334. The Contractor shall
maintain all t>ooks, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of at not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or
expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case records shall
be maintained until the disposition of all such litigation, appeals, daims or exceptions related thereto.

3. Access to Records. The Contractor agrees to provide suffident access to FTA and its contractors to inspect and audit records and information, including
such records and information the contractor or its subcontractors may regard as confidential or proprietary, related to performance of this contract in
accordance with 2 CFR § 200.337.

4. Access to the Sites of Performance. The Contractor agrees to permit FTA and its contractors access to the sites of performance under this contract in
accordance with 2 CFR § 200.337.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT(ADA)

The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which
requires that accessible fadlities and services be made available to persons with disabilities, induding any subsequent amendments to that Act, and with
the Architectural Barriers act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to
persons with disabilities, induding any subsequent amendments to that Act. In addition, the contractor agrees to comply with any and all applicable
requirements issued by the FTA, DOT, DOJ, U.S. GSA, U.S. EEOC, U.S. FCC. any subsequent amendments thereto and any other nondiscrimination
statute(s) that may apply to the Project.

BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS

The contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) and 49 C.F.R. part 661 and 2 CFR § 200.322 Domestic preferences for procurements, which
provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless all steel, iron, and manufrtctured products used in FTA funded projects are produced in the United
States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. § 661.7.

Build America, Buy America Act Construction materials used in the Project are subject to the domestic preference requirement of the Build America, Buy
America Act, Pub. L. 117-58, div. G, tit. IX, §§ 70911-70927 (2021), as implemented by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget's "Buy America
Preferences for Infrastructure Projects," 2 CFR Part 184. The Recipient acknowledges that this agreement is neither a waiver of § 70914(a) nor a finding
under § 70914(b). In accordance witii 2 CFR§ 184.2(a), the Recipient shall apply the standards of 49 CFR Part 661 to iron, steel, and manufactured
products.

Separate requirements for rolling stock are set out at 49 U.S.C. 53230)(2)(C), 49 U.S.C. § 5323(u) and 49 C.F.R. § 661.11. Domestic preferences for
procurements

The bidder or offerer must submit to the Agency frie appropriate Buy America certification. Bids or offers that are not accompanied by a completed Buy
America certification will be rejected as nonresponslve. For more information please see the FTA's Buy America webpage at:
https://www.transit.dot.gov/buyamerica

CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS

The contractor agrees:

a. to use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of any equipment, materials or commodities procured,
contracted for or otherwise obtained with funds granted, guaranteed, loaned, or advanced by the IJ.S. Government under this agreement, and which may be
transported by ocean vessel, shall be transported on privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels, if available. 46 U.S.C. § 55305, and U.S.
Maritime Administration regulations, "Cargo Preference - U.S.-Flag Vessels," 46 CFR Part 381.

b. to furnish within 20 days follovring the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of
loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, 'on4>oard' commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment
of cargo descrit>ed in 46 CFR § 381.7(a)(1) shall be furnished to both the recipient (through the prime contractor in the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading)
and to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590; and

c. to include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this contract when the subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, matr \
or commodities by ocean vessel. .. J

CHANGES TO FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS



Federal requirements that apply to the Recipient or the Award, the accompanying Underlying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto may change due to
changes in federal law, regulation, other requirements, or guidance, or changes in the Recipient's Underlying Agreement including any Information
Incorporated by reference and made part of that Underlying Agreement; and

Applicable changes to those federal requirements will apply to each Third Party Agreement and parties thereto at any tier.

^|IL RIGHTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The following Federal Civil Rights laws and regulations apply to all contracts.

The Contractor and any subcontractor agree to comply with all the requirements prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin of the
Title VI of the Civil Rights Action of 1964, asamend^ 52 U.S.C 2000d, and U.S. DOT regulation 'Nondiscrimlnation In Federally-Assisted Programs of the
Department of Transportation-Effectuation of the Trtie VI of the Civil rights Act, "49 C.F. R. Part 21 and any implementing requirement FTA may issue.

1 Federal Equal Employment Opportunity (EEC) Requlrements.These Include, but are not limited to:

a) Nondlscrimination In Federal Public Transportation Programs. 49 U.S.C. § 5332, covering projects, programs, and activities financed under 49 U.S.C.
Chapter 53, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), disability, or
age, and prohibits discrimination in employment or business opportunity.

b) Prohibition against Employment Discrimination. Title VII of ttie Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Executive Order No. 11246,
'Equal Employment Opportunity,' September 24,1965, as amended, prohibit discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or
national origin.

2 Nondlscrimination on the Basis of Sex. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq. and implementing
Federal regulations. 'Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,' 49 C.F.R. part 25
prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.

3 Nondiscrimlnation on the Basis of Age. The 'Age Discrimination Act of 1975,' as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq., and Department of Health and
Human Services implementing regulations, 'Nondiscrimlnation on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,' 45
C.F.R. part 90, prohibit discrimination by participants in federally assisted programs against individuals on the basis of age. The Age Discrimination in
Employment Act (ADEA), 29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq., and Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) implementing regulations, 'Age Discrimination
in Emf^oyment A^' 29 C.F.R. part 1625, also prohibit employment discrimination against individuals age 40 and over on the basis of age.

4 Federal Protections for Individuals with Disabilities. The Americans vrith Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (ADA), 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.,
prohibits discrimination against qualified Individuals with disabilities in programs, activities, and services, and imposes specific requirements on public and
private entitles. Third party contractors must comply with their responsibilities under Titles I, II, III, IV, and V of the ADA in employment, public services, public
accommodations, telecommunications, and other provisions, many of which are subject to regulations issued by other Federal agencies.

T Rights and Equal Opportunity
Agency Is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As such, the Agency agrees to comply with all applicable Federal civil rights laws and implementing

regulations. Apart from Inconsistent requirements Imposed by Federal laws or regulations, the Agency agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C.
§ 5323(h) (3) by not using any Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory sp^ficatlons. Under this
Contract, the Contractor shall at all times comply with the following requirements and shall Include these requirements In each subcontract entered Into as
part thereof.

1. Nondiscrimlnation. In accordance with Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee
or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disabOity, or age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with
applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.

2. Race, Color, Religion, National Origin, Sex. In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amer>ded, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., and Federal
transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of
Lat)or (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equi Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. chapter
60, and Executive Order No. 11246, 'Equal Employment Opportunity in Federal Em^^oyment," September 24,1^5,42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, as amended by
any later Executive Order that amends or supersedes it referenced in 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, or sex (Including
sexual orientation and gender Identity). Such action shall Include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, promotion, demotion or transfer,
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training. Including apprenticeship.
In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

3. Age. In accordance with the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-634, U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S.
EEOC) regulations. "Age Discrimination In Employment Act,' 29 C.F.R. part 1625, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et
seq., U.S. Health and Human Services regulations, "Nondiscrimlnation on the Basis of Age In Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial
Assistance,' 45 C.F.R. part 90, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and
prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any Implementing requirements FTA may issue.

4.Dlsabilitie8. In accordance with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as an^nded, 29 U.S.C. §794, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,
as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 etseq., the Architectural Bamers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §4151 et seq., and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. §
5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against individuals on the basis of disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any
implementing requirements FTA may issue.

5.Promoting Free Speech and Religious Liberty. The Contractor sfiall ensure that Federal funding is expended in full accordance with the U.S.
^;titution. Federal Law, and statutory and public policy requirements: including, but not limited to, those protecting free speech, religious liberty, public

Vw.:are, the environment, and prohibiting discrimination.

CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT

The Contractor agrees to comply with ail applicable standards, orders, or regulations Issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671q) and the



Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to FTA and the Regional Office of the Environmental
Protection Agency. The following applies for contracts of amounts in excess of $150,000:

Clean Air Act

(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401
et seq.

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Agency and understands and agrees that the Agency will, in turn, report each violation as require-' •-
assure notification to the Agency, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. '

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance
provided by FTA.

Federal Water Pollution Control Act

(1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as
amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.

(2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Agency and understands and agrees that the Agency will, in turn, report each violation as required to
assure notification to the Agency, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

(3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed In whde or in part with Federal assistance
provided by FTA."



DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

Debarment and Suspension {Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). A covered transaction (see 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220) must not be
entered into with any party listed on the govemmentwide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), In accordance with the 0MB
P'-'delines at 2 C.F.R. 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (31 U.S.C. § 6101 note. 51 Fed. Reg. 6370,) and 12689 (31 U.S.C. § 6101

j 54 Fed. Reg. 34131), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debamed, suspended, or othenivlse
exuiuded by agencies, as well as parties declared Ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. The Recipient
agrees to include, and require each Third Party Participant to Include, a similar provision in each lower tier covered transaction, ensuring that each
lower tier Third Party Participant:

(1) Complies with federal debarment and suspension requirements; and

(2) Reviews the SAM at https;//www.sam.gov, If necessary to comply with U.S. DOT regulations, 2 CFR Part 1200.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)

(Does not apply to projects fully funded by the Tribal Transportation Program (TTP).)

It is the policy of the Agency and the United States Department of Transportation ("DOT) that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises ("DBE's"), as defined
herein and in the Federal regulations published at 49 C.F.R. part 26, shall have an equal opportunity to participate in DOT-assisted contracts.

The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the perforrnance of this contract The contractor
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. part 26 In the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out
these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the Agency deems
appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:

(1) Withholding monthly progress payments;

(2) Assessing sanctions;

(3) Liquidated damages; and/or

(4) Disqualifying the contractor from tijture bidding as noivresponsible. 49 C.F.R. § 26.13(b).

Prime contractors are required to pay subcontractors for satisfactory performance of their contracts ho later than 30 days from receipt of each payment the
Agency makes to the prime contractor. 49 C.F.R. § 26.29(a).

^  '<y, for contracts with defined DBE contract goals, the contractor shall utilize the specific DBEs listed unless the contractor obtains the Agency's written
.W; and that, unless the Agency's consent is provided, the contractor shall not be entitled to any payment for wor1< or material unless it Is performed or

suppled by the listed DBE. 49 C.F.R. § 26.53(0 (1 )•

ENERGY CONSERVATION

The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency, which are contained in the state energy conservation
plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C.§ 6201).

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during
employment, vtrithout regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall indude, but not t:>e limited
to the following: EmploymenL upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of
compensation; and selection for training, induding apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination dause.

(2) The contractor will, In all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will
receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

(3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or
applicant has inquired at}out, discussed, or disdosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant This provision shall
not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such
employee's essential job functions disdoses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to
such information, unless such disdosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action,
induding an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish Information.

(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers v\nth which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or
understanding, a notice to be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments
upHer section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and

j,ants for employment.
..

(5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the
Secretary of Labor.

(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and by the rules, regulations, and



orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the
Seaetary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(7) In the event of the contractor's non<»mpliance with the nondiscriminatlon clauses of this contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this
contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in
accordance vrtth procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of Septemtjer 24,1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked
as provided In Executive Order 11246 of September 24.1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(8) The contractor will Include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) In every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulationr""^
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, so that such provisions will be binding
upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the
Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the contractor
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the United
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

FLY AMERICA

a) Definitions. As used in this clause—
1) International air transportation" means transportation by air between a place In the United States and a place outside the United States or between two
places both of which are outside the United States. 2) "United States" means the 50 States, the District of Columbia, and outlying areas. 3) "U.S.-flag air
carrier" means an air carrier holding a certificate under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 411.

b) When Federal funds are used to fund travel. Section 5 of the International Ar Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974 (49 U.S.C. 40118) (Fly
America Act) requires contractors, Agencys, and others use U.S.-flag air carriers for U.S. Government-financed intemational air transportation of personnel
(and their personal effects) or property, to the extent that service by those carriers is available. It requires the Comptroller General of the United States, in the
absence of satisfactory proof of the necessity for foreign-flag air transportation, to disallow expenditures frpm funds, appropriated or otherwise established
for the account of the United States, for intemational air transportation secured aboard a foreign-flag air earner if a U.S.-flag air carrier is available to provide
such services.

c) If available, the Contractor, in p>erforming work under this contract shall use U.S.-flag carriers for intemational air transportation of personnel (and their
personal effects) or property.

d) In the event that the Contractor selects a carrier other than a U.S.-flag air carrier for intemational air transportation, the Contractor shall include a
statement on vouchers involving such transportation essentially as follows:

Statement of Unavailabilitv of U.S.-Rao Air Carriers

Intemational air transportation of persons (and their personal effects) or property by U.S.-flag air carrier was not available or it was necessary to use foreign-
flag air carrier service for the following reasons. See FAR § 47.403. [State reasons]:

e) Contractor shall Include the substance of this clause, Including this paragraph (e), in each subcontract or purchase under this contract that may involve
Intemational air transportation.

INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS ^
The provisions within include. In part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required under the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR § 200), whether or not expressly set forth In the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions
required by DOT, detailed in 2 CFR §200 or as amended by 2 CFR § 1201, or the most recent version of FTA Circular 4220.1 are hereby incorporated by
reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all mandated terms shall be deemed to contrd in the event of a conflict with other provisions
contained in this Contract The Contractor shall not perform any act, feil to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any request which would cause a
violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES

The Recipient and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwifltstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or
award of the underlying Contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Govemment, the Federal Govemment Is not a party to this Contract and
shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to tfie Recipient. Contractor or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any
matter resulting from the underlying Contract. The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with
Federal assistance provided by the FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to
its provisions.

NOTICE TO FTA AND U.S. DOT INSPECTOR GENERAL OF INFORMATION RELATED TO FRAUD, WASTE,
ABUSE, OR OTHER LEGAL MATTERS

If a cument or prospective legal matter that may affect the Federal Govemment emerges, the Recipient must promptly notify the FTA Chief Counsel and FTA
Regional Counsel for the Region In which the Recipient Is located. The Recipient must include a similar notification requirement in its Third Party
Agreements and must require each Third Party Participant to include an equivalent provision In its subagreements at every tier, for any agreement that is a
"covered transaction' according to 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220.

(1) The types of legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major dispute, breach, defaulL litigation, or naming the Federal
Govemment as a party to litigation or a legal disagreement in any forum for any reason.

(2) Matters that may affect the Federal Govemment include, but are not limited to, the Federal Government's interests in the Award, ttie a^mpanying
Underlying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto, or the Federal Govemments administration or enforcement of federal laws, regulations, and J
requirements.

(3) The Recipient must promptly notify tiie U.S. DOT Inspector General in addition to the FTA Chief Counsel or Regional Counsel for the Region in which the
Recipient is located. If the Recipient has knovrfedge of potential fraud, vraste, or abuse occurring on a Project receiving assistance from FTA. The
notification provision applies if a person has or may have submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et seq., or has or may have



committed a criminal or dvil violation of law pertaining to such matters as ̂ ud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or simitar misconduct This responsibility
occurs whether the Project is subject to this Agreement or another agreement between the Recipient and FTA, or an agreement involving a principal, officer,
employee, agent, or Third Party Participant of the Recipient It also applies to subcontractors at any tier. Knowledge, as used in this paragraph, includes, but
is not limited to, knowledge of a criminal or civil investigation by a Federal, state, or local law enforcement or other investigative agency, a criminal indictment
or civil complaint, or probable cause that could support a criminal indictment or any other credible Information in the possession of the Recipient.

PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS

Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT
rt-,jiations, "Program Fraud CivD Remedies," 49 C.F.R. part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project Upon execution of the underiying contract, the
Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement It has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the
underiying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the
Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the
Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal
Government deems appropriate.

The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent dalm, statement, submission, or certification to
the Federal Government under a contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA
under the authority of 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, the Government reserves the right to Impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5323(1) on the
Contractor, to the extent the Federal Govemment deems appropriate.

The Contractor agrees to Indude the above two dauses In each subcontract financed In whole or In part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is
further agreed that the dauses shall not be modified, except to Identify the sut>contractor v/ho will be subject to the provisions.



PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT.

a) Recipients and subreciplents are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

1) Procure or obtain covered telecommunications equipment or services;
2) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain covered telecommunications equipment or services; or
3) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain covered telecommunications equipment or services.

(b) As described in section 889 of Public Law 115-232, "covered telecommunications equipment or services' means any of the following:

(1) Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);

(2) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical InfrastrucUjre, and other national security
purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology
Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);

(3) Telecommunications or video sun/eillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment;

(4) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with
the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably twiieves to be an entity owned or contrdled by, or
otherwise connected to, the govemment of a covered foreign country;

(c) For the purposes of this section, "covered telecommunications equipment or services" also Include systems that use covered telecommunications
equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.

(d) In implementing the prohibition under section 889 of Public Law 115-232, heads of executive agencies administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs
must prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those
affected entities to transition from covered telecommunications equipment or services, to procure replacement equipment or services, and to ensure that
communications service to users and customers is sustained.

(e) When the recipient or subrecipient accepts a loan or grant, it is certifying that it will comply with the prohibition on covered telecommunications
equipment and services in this section. The recipient or subrecipient is not required to certify that ftjnds will not be expended on covered
telecommunications equipment or services beyond the certification provided upon accepting the loan or grant and those provided upon submitting payment
requests and financial reports.

(f) For additional Information, see section 889 of Public Law 115-232 and 200.471.

PROMPT PAYMENT

(Does not apply to projects fully funded by the Tribal Transportation Program (TTP).)

The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later than 30 d. )
after the contractor's receipt of payment for that work. In addition, the contractor is required to return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within
30 days after the subcontractor's work related to this contract is satisfactorily completed.

The contractor must promptly notify the Agency, whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its
work and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The contractor may not
terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of the Agency.

RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

Conditions on use of funds.

(a) No appropriated funds may be expended by the recipient of a Federal contracL grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Memt>er of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with any of the following covered Federal actions: the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal granL the making
of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(b) Each person who requests or receives from an agency a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement shall file with that agency a
certification, that the person has not made, and will not make, any payment prohibited by paragraph (a) of this section.

(c) Each person who requests or receives from an agency a Federal contract, grant, loan, or a cooperative agreement shall file with that agency a
disclosure form if such person has made or has agreed to make any payment using nonappropriated funds (to include profits from any covered Federal
action), which would be prohibited under paragraph (a) of this section if paid for with appropriated funds.

(d) Each person who requests or receives from an agency a commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan shall file with that
agency a statement, whether that person has made or has agreed to make any payment to influence or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with that loan insurance or
guarantee.

(e) Each person who requests or receives from an agency a commitment providing for the United States to Insure or guarantee a loan shall file with that
agency a disclosure form if that person has made or has agreed to make any payment to influence or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with that loan insurance f
guarantee.

Certjflcatlon and disclosure.

(a) Each person shall file a certification, and a disclosure form. If required, with each submission that initiates agency consideration of such person for

)



(1) Award of a Federal contract, grant, or cooperative agreement exceeding $100,000; or

(2) An award of a Federal loan or a commitment prosriding for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan exceeding $150,000.

(b) Each person shall file a certification, and a disclosure form, if required, upon receipt by such person of:

(1) A Federal contract, grant, or cooperative agreement exceeding $100,000; or

(2) A Federal loan or a commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan exceeding $150,000,

L ^is8 such person previously filed a certification, and a disclosure form, If required, under paragraph (a) of this section.

(c) Each person shall file a disclosure form at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs any event that requires disclosure or that materially
affects the accuracy of the information contained in any disclosure form previously filed by such person under paragraphs (a) or (b) of this section. An event
that materially affects the accuracy of the information reported includes:

(1) A cumulative Increase of $25,000 or more in the amount paid or expected to be paid for Influencing or attempting to Influence a covered Federal
action; or

(2) A change In the person(s) or indlvldual(s) Influencing or attempting to influence a covered Federal action; or,

(3) A change in the officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) contacted to influence or attempt to influence a covered Federal action.

(d) Any person who requests or receives from a person referred to in paragraphs (a) or (b) of this section:

(1) A subcontract exceeding $100,000 at any tier under a Federal contract;

(2) A subgrant, contract, or subcontract exceeding $100,000 at any tier under a Federal grant;

(3) A contract or subcontract exceeding $100,000 at any tier under a Federal loan exceeding $150,000; or,

(4) A contract or subcontract exceeding $100,000 at any tier under a Federal cooperative agreement.

Shall file a certification, and a disclosure form, If required, to the next tier above.

(e) All disclosure forms, but not certifications, shall be forwarded flx>m tier to tier until received by the person referred to in paragraphs (a) or {b) of this
section. That person shall forward all disclosure forms to the agency.

(f) Any certification or disclosure form filed under paragraph (e) of this section shall be treated as a material representation of ̂ ct upon which all receiving
tiers shall rely. All liability arising from an enx)neous representation shall be bome solely by the tier filing that representation and shall not be shared by any
tier to which the emsneous representation is forwarded. Submitting an erroneous certiflcation or disclosure constitutes a failure to file the required
certification or disclosure, respectively. If a person fails to file a required certification or disclosure, the United States may pursue all available remedies,
lr"^'iding those authorized by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code.

.'Or awards and commitments in process prior to December 23,1989, but not made before that date, certifications shall be required at award or
commitment, covering activities occurring between December 23,1989, and the date of award or commitment. However, for awards and commitments in
process prior to the December 23,1989 effective date of these provisions, but not made before December 23,1989, disclosure forms shall not be required
at time of award or commitment but shall be filed within 30 days.

(h) No reporting is required for an activity paid for with appropriated funds if that activity is allowable under either subpart B or C.

SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES

Seat Beit Use

The Contractor is encouraged to adopt and promote on^the^job seat belt use policies and programs for its employees and other personnel that operate
company-owned vehicles, company rented vehicles, or personally operated vehicles. The terms "company-owned' and "company-leased" refer to vehicles
owned or leased either by the Contractor or Agency.

Distracted Driving
The Contractor agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text
messaging while using an electronic device supplied by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor owns, leases, or
rents, or a privately-owned vehicle when on official business In connection with the work performed under this Contract.

SOLID WASTES (RECOVERED MATERIALS)

(a) A Recipient or subrecipient that is a State agency or agency of a political subdivision of a State and its contractors must comply with section
6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 as amended, 42 U.S.C. 6962. The
requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only itetris designated in the guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR
Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satis^ctory level of competition,
where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000;
procuring solid waste management services In a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative
procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

(b) The redpient or subrecipient should, to the greatest extent practicable and consistent with law, purchase, acquire, or use products and services
*  ]an be reused, refurbished, or recycled; contain recycled content, are biobased, or are energy and water efficient; and are sustainable. This
i..->'nndude purchasing compostable items and other products and services that reduce the use of single-use plastic products. See Executive
Order 14057, section 101, Policy.

SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES



Applies to States -

a. To the extent required under federal law, the State, as the Recipient, agrees to provide the following information about federal assistance awarded for its
State Program, Project, or related activities:

(1) The Identification of FTA as the federal agency providing the federal assistance for a State Program or Project;
(2) The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number of the program from which the federal assistance for a State Program or Project is
authorized; and

(3) The amount of federal assistance FTA has provided for a State Program or Project. \

b. Documents • The State agrees to provide the information required under this provision in the following documents:

(1) applications for federal assistance.
(2) requests for proposals or solicitations.
(3) forms.
(4) notifications.
(5) press releases,
(6) other publications.

TERMINATION

Termination for Convenience (General Provision^

The Agency may terminate this contract, In whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it Is in the Agency's best interest. The
Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract dose-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall
promptly submit its termination daim to Agency to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property in Its possession belonging to Agency, the
Contractor will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner Agency directs.

Termination for Default fBreach or Cause! (General Provision) ,
If the Contractor does not deliver supplies in accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or if the contract is for services, the Contractor fails to perform
In the manner called for In the contract, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the Agency may terminate this contract
for default Termination shall be effected by serving a Notice of Termination on the Contractor setting forth the manner in which the Contractor is in default.
The Contractor yirill be paid only the contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in the contract. If it is later determined by the Agency that the Contractor had an excusable reason for not performing, such as a strike,
fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of the Contractor, the Agency, after setting up a new delivery of performance
schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a Tenmination for Convenience.

Qpporfunitv to Cure ̂ General Provision t . . . u ^ i • u' u
The Agency, in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor (an appropnately short peric^ of time] in which
to cure the defect In such case, the Notice of Termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If Contractor fails to remedy to Agency's satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract v/ithln (10 days] after
receipt by Contractor of written notice from Agency setting forth the nature of said breach or default. Agency shall have the right to terminate the contra'' \
without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude Agency from also pursuing all avaiL J
remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

Waiver of Remedies for anv Breach u • u a
In the event that Agency elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this contract, such waiver by Agency
shall not limit Agency's remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other covenant, term, or condition of this contract.

Termination for Convenience ̂Professional or Transit Service Contracts^
The Agency, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the Agency's interest If this contract is terminated, the Agency
shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of termination.

Termination for Default fSuDOlies and Service)

If the Contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the sen/ices within the time specified in this contract or any extension, or if the Contractor tails to
comply with any other provisions of this contract, the Agency may terminate this contract for detouit. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the
Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth in this contract. If. after termination for failure to fulfill contract
obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as If the termination had been
issued tor the convenience of the Agency.

Termination for DefauH fTransoortation Services) . ^ ■ .u- . ..
If the Contractor fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the services, including delivery services, within the time specified in this contract or any
extension, or If the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the Agency may terminate this contract for default The Agency shall
terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for
services performed In accordance with the manner of performance set torth In this contract.

If this contract is terminated while the Contractor has possession of Agency goods, the Contractor shall, upon direction of the Agency, protect and preserve
the goods until surrendered to the Agency or its agent The Contractor and Agency shall agree on payment tor the preservation and protection of goods.
Failure to agree on an amount will be resolved under the Dispute clause.

If. after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it Is determined that the Contractor was not in default the rights and obligations of the parties shall
be the same as if the termination had been issued tor the convenience of the Agency.

Termination for Default (Construction^ ]
If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part, with the diligence that will ensure its completion within the time specified i.,^t
contract or any extension or fails to complete the work within this time, or If the Contractor fails to comply with any other provision of this contract. Agency
may terminate this contract for default. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default
In this event, the Agency may take over the work and compete it by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances,
and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the Agency resulting from the



Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This
liability includes any increased costs incurred by the Agency in completing the work.

The Contractor's tight to proceed shall not t>e terminated nor shall the Contractor be charged with damages under this clause if: 1. The delay in completing
the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the contrt^ and without the feult or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts
of God, acts of Agency, acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with Agency, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight
embargoes: and 2. The Contractor, within [10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies Agency in writing of the causes of delay. If, in the judgment of
Agency, the delay Is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of Agency shall be final and conclusive for the parties, but

jct to appeal under the Disputes clause(s) of this contract. 3. If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor
\  not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as If the termination had been issued for the
convenience of Agency.

Termination for Convenience or Default ̂ Architect and Enaineerinq)
The Agency may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the Agency's convenience or because of the feilure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract
ot>llgatlons. The Agency shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the
termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all senrlces affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2)
deliver to the Agency's Contracting Officer all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other Information and materials
accumulated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process. Agency has a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish or othenArise use, all such data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials.

If the termination is for the convenience of the Agency, the Agency's Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price but shall
allow no anticipated profit on unperformed services.

If the termination is for failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations, the Agency may complete the work by contact or otherwise and the
Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost Incurred by the Agency.

If, after termination for ̂ ilure to fulfill contract obligations, it Is determined that the Contractor was not in de^ult, the rights and obligations of the parties shall
be the same as If the termination had been issued for the convenience of Agency

Termination for Convenience or Default fCost-Tvt>e Contracts!

The Agency may terminate this contract, or any portion of it, by serving a Notice of Termination on the Contractor. The notice shall state whether the
termination is for convenience of Agency or for the de^ult of the Contractor. If the termination is for default, the notice shall state the manner in which the
Contractor has failed to perform the requiremerlts of the contract. The Contractor shall account for any property in Its possession paid for from funds
received from the Agency, or property supplied to the Contractor by the Agency. If the termination is for default, the Agency may fix the fee. If the contract
provides for a fee, to be paid the Contractor in proportion to the value, if any, of work performed up to the time of tenoination. The Contractor shall promptly
submit its termination claim to the Agency and the parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to be paid the Contractor.

If the termination is for the convenience of Agency, the Contractor shall be paid Its contract close-out costs, and a fee. If the contract provided for payment of
a fee, in proportion to the work performed up to the time of termination.

If, after sen/ing a Notice of Termination for Default, the Agency determines that the Contractor has an excusable reason for not performing, the Agency, after
f "■ng up a new work schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a Termination for Convenience.

OTHER RECOMMENDED CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

CONFORMANCE WITH ITS NATIONAL ARCHITECTURE

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) projects shall conform to the National ITS Architecture and standards pursuant to 23 CFR § 940. Conformance with
the National ITS Architecture is interpret^ to mean the use of the National ITS Architecture to develop a regional ITS architecture in support of integration
and the subsequent adherence of all ITS projects to that regional ITS architecture. Development of the regional ITS architecture should be consistent with
the transportation planning process for Statewide and Metropolitan Transportation Planning (49 CFR Part 613 and 621).

FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS

(1) The contractor certifies that it:

(a) Does not have any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have
lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability; and

(b) Was not convicted of the felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

If the contractor cannot so certify, the Recipient will refer the matter to FTA and not enter into any Third Party Agreement with the Third Party Participant
without FTA's written approval.

(2) Row-Down. The Recipient agrees to require the contractor to flow this requirement down to participants at all lower tiers, without regard to the value of
any subagreement.

SEVERABILITY

The Contractor agrees that if any provision of this agreement or any amendment thereto is determined to be invalid, then the remaining provisions thereof
that conform to federal laws, regulations, requirements, and guidance will continue in eftect.

\FFICKING IN PERSONS
I

TBTcontractor agrees that it and its employees that participate in the Recipient's Award, may not:

(a) Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the Recipient's Award is in effect;

(b) Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the Recipient's Award is in effect; or



BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATION

STEEL OR MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS

If steel, iron, or manu^ctured products (as defined in 49 CFR 661.3 and 661.5) are being procured, the appropriate certificate as set forth below shall
t>e completed and submitted by each bidder or offeror in accordance with the requirement contained In 49 CFR 661.13(b).

Jflrtificate of Compliance with Buv America Requirements

The bidder or offeror hereby certifies that it will comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323G)(1), arKJ the applicable regulations in 49 CFR part
661.

Company , ■

Name Title_

Signature '■ ' Date

Certificate of Non-Compilance with Buv America Steel or Manufactured Products Reauirementa

The bidder or offeror hereby certifies that It cannot comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323(j), but It may qualify for an exception to the
requirement pursuant to 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2), as amended, and the applicable regulations In 49 C.F.R. 661.7.
Company • ■ • . . .
Name Title ■
Signature • " "" : Date • " " •



GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION
(NONPROCUREMENT)

Recipients, contractors, and subcontractors that enter into covered transactions are required to verify that the entity (as weii as its principals and
affiliates) with which they propose to contract or sut>contract is not excluded or disqualified. This is done by: (a) checking the SAM exclusions: (b)
collecting a certification from that person (found below); or (c) adding a clause or condition to the contract or subcontract.

Instmctlonft for Certification: Signing below indicates the prospective lower tier participant is providing the signed certification.

(1) It will comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations, "Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarmcnt," 2 CFR part 1200, which adopts and
supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. 0MB) "Guidelines to Agencies on Govemmentwide Debarraent and Suspension
(Nonprocurement)," 2 CFR part 180,

(2) To the best of its knowledge and belief, that its Principals and Subrecipients at the first tier

a. Are eligible to participate in covered transactions of any Federal department or agency and are not presently:

1. Debarred,

2. Suspended,

3. Proposed for debansent,

4. E)cclared ineligible,

5. Voluntajily excluded, or

6. Disqualified

b. Its management has not within a three-year period preceding its latest application or proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against
any ofthem for

1. Commission of fraud or a criminal offetise in connection with obtaiiung, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local)
transaction, or contract under a public transaction,

2. Violation of any Federal or State antitrust statute, or,
3. Commission of embezzlement, theft, forgeiy, bribery, felsification or destiuction ofrecords, making any felse statement, or receiving stolen property,

c. It is not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the
offenses listed in die preceding subsection 2.b ofthis Certification,

d. It has not had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or defeult within a three-year period preceding this
Ceitification,

e. If, at a later time, it receives any information that contradicts the statements of subsections 2.a - 2.d above, it will promptly provide that information to
FTA,

f. It will treat each lower tier contract or lower tier subcontract under its Project as a covered lower tier contract for purposes of 2 CFR part 1200 and 2
CFR part 180 if it:

1. Equals or exceeds $25,000,

2. Is for audit services, or,

3. Requires the consent of a Federal ofllciai, and

g. It will require that each covered lower tier contractor and subcontracton

1. Comply and facilitate compliance with the Federal requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200, and
2. Assure that each lower tier participant in its Project is not presently declared by any Federal department or agency to be:

a. Debarred from participation in its federally funded Project,
b. Suspended from participation in its federally funded Project,
c. Proposed for debarment from participation in its federally funded Project,
d. Declared ineligible to participate in its federally funded Project,
e. Voluntarily excluded from participation in its federally funded Project, or
f. Disqualified from participation in its federally funded Project, and

(3) It will provide a written explanation as indicated on a page attached in FTA's TrAMS platform or the Signature Page if it or any of its principals, including any
of its first tier Subrecipients or its Third-Party Participants at a lower tier, is unable to certify compliance with the preceding statements in this Certification Group.,

Certification

Contractor:

Signature of Authorized Offidai:^ ^Date.

Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official:



Federal Certifications

CERTIFICATION AND RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

.hereby certify
(Name and title of official)

On behalf of that
(Name of Bidder/Company Name)

No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or
attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making
of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and tiie extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form - ILL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

• The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers
(including sub-contracts, sub-grants and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into,
•^bmission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Any person who

.iils to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such
^ilure..

Name of Bidder/Company Name:.

Type or print name:

Signature of authorized representative: Date



' O^aiiai^nl'd/.TVMup^otiou

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 6/28/24

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name ofRecipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name of Subrecipient Agency: Advance Transit, Inc.

Advance Transit, Inc., shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and
requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required
by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $1,456,600

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.526
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5339 BUS & BUS FACILITIES PROGRAM

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2024-009-01

Federal Award Date: 8/19/2024

Contact information for sub-awarding ofTicial:

Name: Fred Butler Title; Public Transportation Administrator, Bureau of Rail and Transit
Email: Frederick.J.Butler@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2565
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient/Contractor Information:

Subrecipient Name: Advance Transit, Inc.

Subrecipient SAM.GOV I.D.: XRDYJ3TWHTZ5

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Adams Carroll
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Executive Director
Federal Clauses: Yes

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or, ifno such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect. (F&A) costs,
paragraph (f)).

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 7/1/25 End Date: 6/30/2029



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 6/28/24

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (asreement/amendment):

For FFY: 2025-Sectionr5339--Amount>$l,456,600

Total amount of FTA sub-award COimuitted to the subvccipient (original agreement & amemlnwiUs):

For FFY: 2025 Section: 5339 Amount: $1,568,750

Pass-through requirements:

The Subrecipient, Advance Transit, Inc. agrees to meet all requirement imposed by the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in accordance
with Federal statues, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient, Advance TransiU Inc. agrees to any additional requirements that the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity
(NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the
Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of ariy required fihahcial and
performance reports.

The Subrecipient, Advance TransiU lnc, agrees to permit the pass-thi-ough entity (NHDOT) and
auditors to have access to the subrecipieiifs records and financial statements as necessary for the
pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and appropriate terms and conditions
concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: 4/5/ 9s

Name of authorizing subrecipieiit official: Adams Carroll

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Executive Director

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official:



Internal Revenue Service

District

Director

Department of the Treasury

P.O. Box 16M. GPO Brooklyn, NY 11202

Date: MAY 1 3 1996

Advance Transit, Inc.
Billings CJommerce Park
Post Office Box 635
WiIder, VT 05088-0635

Person to Contact:

Patricia Holub

Contact Telephone Number
(718) 488-2333
EIN: 22-2558708

Dear Sir or Madam:

Reference is made to your request for verification of the
tax exempt status of Advance Transit, Inc.

A determination or ruling letter issued to an organization
granting exemption under the Internal Revenue Code remains in
effect until the tax exempt status has been terminated, revoked
or modified.

Our records indicate that exemption was granted as shown below.

Sincerely yours.

f
»•

Patricia Holub

Manager, Customer
Service Unit

Name of Organization: Advance Transit, Inc.

Date of Exemption Letter: February 1985

Exemption granted pursuant to section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Foundation Classification (if applicable): Not a private
foundation as you are an organization described in sections
509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) of the Internal Revenue Code
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Independent Auditors' Report
To the Board of Directors of

Advance Transit, Inc.

Wilder, Vermont

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Advance Transit, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Advance
Transit, Inc. as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Advance Transit, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities ofManagement for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Advance Transit, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fî ud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the agigregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

174 Court Slreci. Laconia, NH 03246-(OOS) 527-S72l-Fax (603) 527-8IH7
1



•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Advance Transit, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Advance Transit, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 10, 2023, on our
consideration of Advance Transit, Inc.'s internal control over fmancial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Advance Transit, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Advance Transit, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

VeroffCPA, PC

Laconia, New Hampshire
October 10, 2023
NH Reg. #07785D



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,2023 and 2022

2023 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Restricted municipal and contract pledges receivable
Prepaid expenses

Security deposits

Total current assets

CONTRACT PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

Designated

Capital reserve

Operating reserve

Strategic reserve

Undesignated

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

4,006,600 $ 3,965,379

734,743 802,599

1,341,200 1,314,821

274,339 253,007

49,535 27,715

6,406,417 6,363,521

309,371 376,543

11,956,002 10,341,035

18,671,790 $ 17,081,099

131,013 $ 71,835

189,095 182,828

38,020 -

358,128 254,663

358,128 254,663

1,200,000 500,000

2,400,000 2,000,000

468,400 442,700

778,034 1,896,773

13,467,228 11,986,963

18,313,662 16,826,436

18,671,790 $ 17,081,099

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
-3-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year ending June 30, 2023

Without

Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Federal government: section 5311, operating $ 3,729,734 $ -  $ 3,729,734

Federal and state government: section 5339/5311, capital - 2,646,251 2,646,251

Federal government: CMAQ, operating 220,000 - 220,000

Federal government: RTAP 7,379 - 7,379

Contract 439,541 672,930 1,112,471

Municipal 41,428 578,796 620,224

State of New Hampshire 34,782 - 34,782

Donations 99,075 - 99,075

Sponsorships 85,509 - 85,509

Other 104,949 - 104,949

Net assets released from restrictions 2,638,690 (2,638,690) -

Total revenue and support 7,401,087 1,259,287 8,660,374

EXPENSES

Program services

Public and other transporation 5,769,128 - 5,769,128

Total program services 5,769,128 - 5,769,128

Support services

General and administrative 1,344,544 - 1,344,544

RTAP 7,379 - 7,379

Fundraising 52,751 - 52,751

Total support services 1,404,674 - 1,404,674

Total expenses 7,173,802 - 7,173,802

Change in net assets before transfers 227,285 1,259,287 1,486,572

Transfers of local share to restricted (220,978) 220,978 -

Net assets, beginning of year 4,840,127 11,986,963 16,827,090

Net assets, end of year $  4,846,434 $ 13,467,228 $ 18.313,662

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
-4-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Federal government: section 5311, operating
Federal and state government: section 5339/5311 capital

Federal government: CMAQ, operating
Contract

Municipal

State of New Hampshire

Donations

Sponsorships
PPP loan forgiven

Gain on sale of fixed assets

Other

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

EXPENSES

Program services

Public and other transporation
Total program services

Support services

General and administrative

Fundraising
Total support services

Total expenses

Change in net assets before transfers

Transfers of local share to restricted

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

;30, 2022

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

3,913,887 $ -  $ 3,913,887
- 505,953 505,953

241,499 241,499

289,811 1,310,065 1,599,876

265,645 381,299 646,944

34,782 - 34,782

92,568 51,806 144,374

68,976 - 68,976

682,173 - 682,173

13,550 - 13,550

10,529 10,529

2,147,967 (2.147,967) -

7,761,387 101,156 7,862,543

5,178,666 5,178,666

5,178,666 - 5,178,666

829,455 829,455

71,844 - 71,844

901,299 - 901,299

6,079,965 6,079,965

1,681,422 101,156 1,782,578

(45,433) 45,433 -

3,203,484 11,840,374 15,043,858

4,839,473 $ 11,986,963 $ 16,826,436

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the year ending June 30, 2023

Program

Services Support Services

Public

and Other

Transportation

General and

Administrative Fundraising RTAP

Total

Support

Services Total

Expenses:

Salaries $  2,665,761 $  609,889 $  9,621 $ -  $ 619,510 $ 3,285,271

Payroll taxes 187,620 46,948 799 - 47,747 235,367

Benefits 720,981 131,048 3,209 - 134,257 855,238

Travel 4,515 252 - - 252 4,767

Uniforms 22,181 - - - - 22,181

Fuel 398,946 3,640 - - 3,640 402,586

Repairs 269,931 1,434 - - 1,434 271,365

Building 82,751 - - - - 82,751

Office 34,429 73,750 38,932 - 112,682 147,111

COVID 19 equipment and supplies 4,395 -
- - - 4,395

RTAP expense reimbursable - - - 7,379 7,379 7,379

Other professional services 73,438 73,411 -
73,411 146,849

Vehicle insurance 134,875 - -
- - 134,875

Umbrella insurance 5,044 - - 5,044

Commercial package 121,911 11,737 190 - 11,927 133,838

Pollution insurance 1,568 - - - - 1,«8

Vehicle registration and taxes 12,341 - - - - 12, )
Regulatory expense 13,992 - - - - 13,992

Utilities 62,751 - - - - 62,751

Depreciation and amortization 951,698 392,435 - - 392,435 1,344,133

Total expenses $  5,769,128 $  1,344,544 $  52,751 $ 7,379 $ 1,404,674 $ 7,173,802

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
-6-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the year ending June 30, 2022

Program

Services

Expenses:

Salaries

Payroll taxes

• Benefits

Fuel

Repairs

Other professional services

Office

Insurance

Travel

Uniforms

COVTD 19 supplies and equipment

Building

Parts inventory

Interest

)w Hampshire capital grant
Depreciation and amortization

Total expenses

Public

and Other

Transportation

Support Services

2,469,508 $

177,020

562,102

205,790

221,623

43,142

277,106

1,767

19,642

3,895

132,878

6,113

443

1,057,637

General and

Administrative

279,544

33,038

80,929

1,428

.  1,676

265,064

62,362

10,688

215

1,278

8,873

Fundraising

44,038

27,806

Total

Support

Services

279,544

33,038

80,929

1,428

1,676

309,102

90,168

10,688

215

1,278

8,873

84,360

Total

2,749,052

210,058

643,031

207,218

223,299

309,102

133,310

287,794

1,982

19,642

5,173

132,878

6,113

8,873

443

1,141,997

$  5,178,666 $

84,360 -
829,455 $ 71,844 $ 901,299 $ 6,079,965

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  1,486,572 $ 1,782,578

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,174,937 1,141,997

Gain on disposal of equipment - (13,550)

PPP loan forgiven - (673,300)

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 67,856 (308,417)

(Increase) decrease in municipal and contract pledges receivable 40,793 (765,298)

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (21,332) (4,674)

(Increase) decrease in deposits (21,820) (15,032)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 59,832 (87,382)

Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll expenses 6,267 (29,186)

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 38,020 (743)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,831,125 1,026,993

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment (2,789,904) (535,890)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,789,904) (512,840)

NET INCREASE IN CASH 41,221 514,153

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,965,379 3,451,226

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $  4,006,600 $ 3,965,379

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Advance Transit, Inc. (the "Organization") is a voluntary, not-for-profit corporation incorporated under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire and is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes
within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Its mission is
to provide a comprehensive transportation network for the several towns of the Upper Connecticut River
Valley Region of New Hampshire and Vermont.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization are prepared on the accrual basis. Under the accrual basis,
revenues and gains are recognized when eamed, and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred.
The significant accounting policies followed by the Organization are described below to enhance the
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization adheres to the Presentation of Financial Statements for not-for-profit organizations topic
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC
958 205). Under FASB ASC 958-205, the Organization is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets. Descriptions of the two net asset
categories are as follows:

Without donor restrictions - Those resources not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. The Board
of Directors has discretionary control over these resources. Designated amounts represent those net
assets that the board has set aside for a particular purpose.

With donor restrictions - Those resources subject to donor-imposed restrictions that will be
satisfied by action of the Organization or by the passage of time.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted, highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The Organization's bank deposit account balances are Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC")
insured up to $250,000, and any excess amounts are fully collateralized by the depository bank through
use of a variety of sweep accoimts designed to maintain Organization deposit balances at levels below the
FDIC coverage limit.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue Recognition

A substantial portion of the Organization's revenue and support is derived from cost reimbursement
contracts with the States of New Hampshire and Vermont. Revenue and support is recognized when
reimbursable expenditures are incurred. Payments are received, up to each of the contracts respective cost
limitations upon the Organization's submittal of written requests for reimbursement of allowable
expenditures.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted (without donor restrictions) or restricted (with donor
restrictions) support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose
restriction is accomplished), restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor
are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the
contributions are recognized.

Pledges

Unconditional promises to give, including capital campaign pledges, are recognized as revenues in the
period received and as assets, decreases of liabilities, or expenses depending on the form of the benefits
received. Promises to give are recorded at net realizable value if expected to be collected in one year and at
fair value if expected to be collected in more than one year. Conditional promises to give are recognized
when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to an allowance based on its assessment of the amounts deemed collectible. It is the
Organization's policy to charge off uncollectible receivables when management determines that the
receivable will not be collected.

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to
Advance Transit, Inc., separate accounts are maintained for each activity. They are as follows:

Public and Other Transportation - accounts for revenue and expenses involved with operating fixed
pubhc transportation routes as well as other non-fixed routes open to the pubUc and expenses for
administration and direct trip reimbursement subcontracted by oAer agencies or programs.

Rural Transit Assistance Program ("RTAP") - accounts' for revenue and expenses associated with
training in non-urbanized areas.

Income Taxes

Advance Transit, Inc. Is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the Internal Revenue Service as other than a
private foundation.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Organization has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded that the
Organization had maintained its tax-exempt status, has properly reported any significant unrelated
business Income and had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the
financial statements.

The Organization's Forms 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the years ending
June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they
were filed.

Property and Equipment

The Organization records purchases of equipment at cost. Expenditures for property, plant and equipment
with a cost greater than $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-
line method based on the following useful lives. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and improvements,
which do not materially extend the useful lives of the assets, are expensed.

Years

Land improvements 15
Buildings and improvements 10-50
Transportation, office, shop, communication and radio equipment 5-12

The Organization's facility and certain transportation equipment are subject to liens held by the States of
New Hampshire and/or Vermont as agents for the Federal Transit Administration or other Federal agencies
to provide for compliance with grant requirements. New Hampshire and/or Vermont also hold the title to
any equipment while subject to a lien. Substantially all of the Organization's property and equipment,
including related fmancing of these assets, are subject to these requirements. Therefore, the net assets
related to property and equipment acquired through grants is reported as restricted.

Deferred Revenue

The Organization records deferred revenue, which represents sponsorship, local grant match pledges, and
advertising income covering periods beyond June 30, 2023 and unearned sponsorship and municipal
assistance received in advance of the period to which the revenue relates.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Organization accrue paid vacation at a rate that varies depending on their length of
service. Employees are allowed to accumulate unused vacation time up to a maximum of 125% of annual
hours earned. Employees may request a payout of a limited amount of accrued vacation time each year.
Employees are entitled to a payout of all unused vacation time upon separation of employment from the
Organization.

Employees accrue paid sick days. Unused sick leave may accrue indefinitely without limit. Employees may
also request a pay-out of sick leave accrued in excess of 200 hours at a rate of 3 hours of sick leave for each
one hour of pay. Employees are not entitled to any payout of unused sick leave upon separation of
employment from the Organization.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Designation of Unrestricted Net Assets

It is the policy of the Board of Directors to review its plans for future property improvements and
acquisitions, as well as other operating needs, from time to time and to designate appropriate sums of
unrestricted net assets to assure adequate financing of such purposes.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable include funds due to the Organization under various grant award agreements.
Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 consisted of the following:

2023 2022

New Hampshire Department of Transportation $ 455,279 $ 400,032
Vermont Agency of Transportation 208,739 384,128

Contracts 26,425

Federal and state excise tax 24,703 18,430

Other 19,597 ^

Total accounts receivable $ 734,743 $ 802,599

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED MUNICIPAL AND CONTRACT PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

2023 2022

Dartmouth College $  672,930 641,929

Michaels Student Living LLC 398,845 540,036

Town of Hanover 334,056 150,783

City of Lebanon 133,600 124,855

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center - 128,100

Town of Hartford 84,200 81,747

Town of Norwich 13,920 13,514

Town of Canaan 8,100 5,000

Town of Enfield 4,920 5,400

Total $  1,650,571 3:  1,314,821

All contributions will be received or receivable and recognized for the year ended June 30, 2023 except
for Michaels Student Living LLC, which will be received as follows:

FY2024 100,000

FY2025 100,000

FY2026 100,000

FY2027 100,000

FY2028 25,000

Less unamortized discount (26,155)

Total $ 398,845

■
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2023 AND 2022

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED MUNICIPAL AND CONTRACT PLEDGES RECEIVABLE (continued)

The discount rate on the Michael's pledge is calculated at the 5-year Daily Treasury Par Yield Curve
Rate, 2.88% at June 30, 2023.

Michaels Student Living LLC contract pledges receivable, at present value:

Due in less than one year $ 100,000
Due FY2024-FY2028 298,845

$  398,845

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

263,358 5;  263,358

47,804 47,804

5,210,289 4,376,456

13,424,844 11,521,017

130,244 130,244

966,409 938,341

20,042,948 17,277,220

8,086,946 6,936,185

11,956,002 3:  10.341,035

Land $

Land improvements

Buildings and improvements

Transportation equipment

Communication and radio equipment

Office and shop equipment

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Property and equipment, net $

NOTE 6 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has available a bank line of credit for up to $200,000 at June 30, 2023 and 2022. The
line of credit is due on demand and secured by the business assets of the Organization. Draws on the line
of credit bear interest based on the Wall Street Journal Prime rate (currently indexed to 3.25%) for the
year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. There were no outstanding balances on this line of credit as of June
30, 2023 and 2022.

NOTE 8-NET ASSETS

Board Designated Net Assets

In June 2016, the Board approved the establishment of a Board designated capital reserve fund.

In November of 2018 the Board approved a change that modified the purpose to include funds committed
for the coming fiscal year as part of the budget process and amounts that are beyond that period but
reasonably certain to be incurred. This figure will be adjusted as capital match requirements change. As
of June 30, 2023, the capital match reserve was set at $1,200,000.

In January 2016 the Board approved the establishment of a Board designated operating reserve fund. The
purpose of the operating reserve fund is to set aside approximately four months of operating expenses for
the organization.

- 13-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2023 AND 2022

NOTE 8 - NET ASSETS (continued)

As of June 30, 2023 the minimum operating reserve calculated and set aside by the Board amounted to
$2.4 million. The amount of the operating reserve target minimum will be reassessed annually.

During FY2021 the Organization's Board of Directors established a strategic reserve ftmd. The Strategic
Reserve is intended to provide a ready source of fimds for strategic initiatives necessary for the effective
operation of the organization and programs. The target amount of the Strategic Reserve will be
determined by reference to the forecasted needs of the organization, with the minimum established in an
amount deemed sufficient to cover needs identified in the current strategic plan. The initial target
Strategic Reserve is equal to $500,000. As of June 30,2023, the amount held in the Strategic Reserve was
$468,400. The amount of the Strategic Reserve target minimum will be reassessed at least annually.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of equipment and vehicles purchased with restricted resources,
thereby limiting the assets use to specified purposes throughout the useful life of the assets, town
appropriations approved in June 30, 2023 but to be paid in 2024 and capital campaign pledges.

Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the following:
2023 2022

Net property, plant and equipment funded with restricted resources

Orange/yellow line local match contribution
Municipal and contract pledges

Total net assets with donor restrictions

11,816,657 S 10,245,362

- 50,237

1,650,571 1,691,364

13,467,228 $ 11,986,963

2023 2022

$  1,171,138 $ 1,138,681
50,237 42,209

124,796 31,511

1,292,519 926,066
- 9,500

$ 2,638,690 $ 2,147.967

Net assets released from restrictions are as follows:

Purpose restrictions accomplished:
Depreciation on restricted assets
Expiration of purpose restrictions on orange/yellow line (CMAC^
Expiration of purpose restrictions on capital purchases not depreciated
Expiration of time restrictions on contributions receivable
Expiration of purpose restrictions on bus disposals

Total net assets released from restrictions

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization sponsors a salary reduction contribution plan pursuant to Section 403(b) of the Internal
Revenue Code, covering substantially all employees. Under the plan, employees contribute a specified
percentage of their salary, or a fixed dollar amount, to the plan. The Organization may agree to make
"non-elective" contributions or a matching contribution to their employees' 403(b) plans. The
Organization currently matches 50% on the first 5% of employee deferrals. For the years ended June 30,
2023 and 2022 employer contributions to the plan amounted to $42,210 and $36,192, respectively.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2023 AND 2022

NOTE 10 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Organization receives substantial grant/contract funds from the New Hampshire Department of
Transportation and Vermont Agency of Transportation and is dependent upon this funding to support
most of its activities and operations. Funding from the States of Vermont and New Hampshire is
renegotiated each year and is not guaranteed for future years beyond June 30, 2023. Loss of these funds
could jeopardize the Organization's ability to continue its activities and operations.

NOTE 11 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by amounts
not available for general use because of contractual or donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the
balance sheet date.

2023 2022

Financial assets consist of:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts, municipal and pledges receivable

Total financial assets

Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due
to:

Donor restrictions

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditure
within one year

4.006,600 $ 3,965,378

2,075,943 2,117,420

6,082,543 4,871,476

40,640

6,082,543 $ 4,830,836

As part of the Organization's liquidity management, it invests cash balances in excess of its daily
requirements into short-term investments through a sweep account arrangement with its primary bank.

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 10, 2023, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued and has determined that no subsequent events have occurred that
would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal Grantor Agency and Program Title

U.S. Department of Transportation

Major Programs;

r>f New Hampshire Department of

Transportation:

Formula Grants for Rural Areas

State of Vermont A2encv of Transportation:

CFDA

Number

20.509

Pass-Through
Identifying
Number

NH-2020-007

Program or
Award

Amount

Awards

Expended

$2,914,700 $2,650,827

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

Subtotal CFDA 20.509

Federal Transit Cluster

State of Vermont Agency of Transportation:

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

State of New Hampshire Department of
Transportation:

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program
Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

Total Federal Transit Cluster

Total Major Programs

State of Vermont Agency of Transportation:

Metropolitan Transportation Planning and
State and Non-Metropolitan Planning and
Research

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.526

20.526

20.526

20.526

20.526

20.505

CRRSAA22-901

ARPA22-901

FT23FORM-451

FT23FLEX-551

FT23FORM-701

FT202201-061

FT23FLEX-061

FT202101-061

FT23FLEX-851

FT202205-061

FT202205-071

FT202203-061

NH.2021-010

NH-2022-013

FT202206-051

669,666

100,334

257,887

175.000

11,232

168,800

35,200

117,126

220,000

1,492,243

724,374

24,000

1,203,635
1,848.000

40,000

653,236

100,334

192,401

137,936

7,379

9,600

1,870

66,327

220,000

4.039,910

1,492,243

446,138

19,111

145,281

64,496

2.167,269

6,207,179

25,167

$ 6.232346
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY

Advance Transit, Inc. (the "Organization") is a voluntary, not-for-profit organization incorporated under
the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292) and is engaged to provide a comprehensive
transportation network for the several towns in the Upper Connecticut River Valley Region of New
Hampshire and Vermont. The Organization was founded in January 1984 and is headquartered in Wilder,
Vermont.

NOTE 2 - SCOPE OF THE AUDIT PURSUANT TO THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") presents the activity of all Federal
award programs of Advance Transit, Inc. All Federal awards are received directly from Federal agencies
as well as Federal awards passed through other government agencies or other entities are included in the
schedule.

NOTE 3 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared in the format as set
forth in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
financial statements.

The Schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting. It includes all Federal awards to the
Organization which had expenditure activity during the year ended June 30, 2023. Several programs are
jointly funded by the State of Vermont and State of New Hampshire appropriations in addition to Federal
Awards. The Schedule reflects only that part of the grant activity funded by Federal Awards. The
Organization has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 - CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBERS

The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the 2023 Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance.
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Independent Auditors* Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors

Advance Transit, Inc.

Wilder, Vermont

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Advance Transit, Inc.
(the "Organization"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets, fimctional expenses and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued pur report thereon dated
October 10, 2023.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's
internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's fmancial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

/74 Court Street, Laconia. NH03246 ■{603} 527-8721-Fax (603) 527-S187
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Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards (Continued)

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

VeroffCPA, PC

Laconia, New Hampshire
October 10, 2023

NH Registration #07785D
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VeroffCPA
ACCOUNTING 1 AUDIT 1 TAX

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal

Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance
To the Board of Directors

Advance Transit, Inc.

Wilder, Vermont

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Advance Transit, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Organization's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. The Organization's major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule
of fmdings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Advance Transit, Inc.'s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Organization's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Advance Transit, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30,2023.

174 Court Sireei. Luconia. NH 03246 -(603) 527-8721Fax (603) 527-8167 _)
-20-



Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal

Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance (Continued)

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization's intemal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on intemal control over
compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization's intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

l/e-f^^PA
VeroffCPA, PC

Laconia, NH 03246
October 10, 2023
NH Registration #077850
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Section I - Summary of Auditors* Report

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

•  Material Weakness(es) identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses.

Non-compliance material to the financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

•  Material weakness(es) identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditors* report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit fmdings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section
200.516 of the Uniform Guidance!

Identification of Major Programs

Name of program or cluster

U.S. Department of Transportation - Formula Grants for Rural Areas
U.S. Department of Transportation - Buses and Bus Facilities Formula

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under Section 200.520 of the Uniform Guidance:

Section n - Financial Statement Findings

No current year findings.

Section 111 - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No current or prior year findings

Unqualified

No

No

No

No

No

Unqualified

No

CFPA number

20.509

20.526

$  750,000

Yes
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ADVANCE Board of Directors
TRANSIT juiyi, 2024

,  ' J

^iBOARD OFFICERS
i  , 'Sr .. ■

President

Rebecca Owens

Lebanon Member

(board term ends 6/27; officer term ends 6/26)

"  r" ft,-, 5ft ''

Vice President

Mark Bellveau

Hanover Member

(board term ends 6/25; officer term ends 6/26)

Treasurer

Georgios Katsaros

Norwich Member

(board term ends 6/25; officer term ends 6/25)

Secretary

MattOsborn

Member At Large

(board term ends 6/25; officer term ends 6/25)



BOARD MEMBERS y ' , y- ^

Ana Azueia

Member At Large (board term ends 6/27)

Rita Seto

Member At Large (board term ends 6/27)

Bethany Fleishman

Hartford Member (board term ends 6/25)

Mike Scheller

Member At Large (board term ends 6/27)

Robert Houseman

Hanover Member (board term ends 6/26)

James L Taylor

Bnfield Member (board term ends 6/26)

Kathie Nolet

Member At Large (board term ends 6/26)

Devin Wilkle

Lebanon Representative (board term ends 6/27)

Patrick O'Neill

Member At Large (board term ends 6/26)

2 ♦ Board of Directors



Adams

Carroll

linkedin.com/in/adamscarroll

Contact

acarroil@advancetransit.com

+1(802)295-1824

Experience Advance Transit / Executive Director

JUNE2022-PRESENT: WILDER,VT

numo lie / Director of Operations - indi
DECEMBER 2018 - MAY 2022; PITTSBURGH. PA

Pittsburgh BIkeshare Inc. / Director of Operations and Planning
SEPTEMBER 2016 - DECEMBER 2018; PITTSBURGH, PA

Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County /

Active Mobility Planner
JANUARY 2015 - SEPTEMBER 2016; NASHVILLE, TN

Walk Bike Nashville / Program Manager
JANUARY 2012 - AUGUST 2014; NASHVILLE, TN

Hands On Nashville / Program Coordinator
NOVEMBER 2011 - FEBRUARY 2013; NASHVILLE, TN

St Petersburg State University & Bard College / International

Program Manager
DECEMBER 2009 - JUNE 2011; ST. PETERSBURG, RUSSIA

Education University of Pittsburgh - Katz School Of Business / M.B.A.
2019-2022. BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Vanderbilt University ■ Peabody College / M.Ed.
2013-2015, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND ACTION

Reed College/BA.
2005-2009, RUSSIAN LITERATURE AND LANGUAGE



Ashley Manning

Email - amannlng@advancetransit.com

-Professional Summary

Operations leader \with vast knowledge and experience in public transit. Versed in project management,

organization, self-motivation and ability to work with others.

•Core Qualifications-

File/Records Management

Warranty

Inventory Management

Facility Maintenance Management

Vendor Negotiations

Procurement

Contract Management

Shop Scheduling

Budgets

Computer Proficient, including Excel, Dossier and Transman Maintenance Software

Organization Skills

Reports generation and analysis

Quick Learner

■Experience

Chief Operating Officer 04/23-current
Advance Transit

Wilder, VT

Oversight and direction of Advance Transit's fleet facility maintenance, procurement, transit operations,
demand-response paratransit operations, and associated operational functions.

Maintenance, Facilities, & Procurement Manager 10/16-04/23
Advance Transit

Wilder, VT

Maintenance, Facilities, and Procurement Manager at a rural transit agency operating in both Vermont
and New Hampshire.

MPA 6/15-6/16
Casella Construction; Casella Hydraulics



Mendon, VT

Supports maintenance department in hydraulics and growing construction divisions. Works with

hydraulic technicians to provide timely, professional hydraulic repairs for customers. Duties - customer

communication; invoice generation; A/R collection duties in hydraulics; manage inventory at several
locations; repair order review; communicate with job site supervisors to schedule work and parts

deliveries. Process development •> maintenance invoices; small equipment purchases/management;

regular Inventory; parts returns; creating requisition lists for regular parts reordering. Responsible for

warranty submission, permits and registrations, IFTA submissions, managing assets in maintenance

software, training technicians on maintenance software.

Interim Fleet Manager; MPA 6/14-6/15

Casella Waste

Williston, VT

Worked collaboratively with the mechanics and other departments to maintain a professional, goal

based work environment. Responsibilities - inventory; shop scheduling; communicate with third party

shops; repair order review; prioritize work load to ensure trucks are safe and operational for all routes;

DOT compliance; working with operations to determine route needs and schedule maintenance.

Assistant to the Maintenance Manager 3/07-6/14

CCTA (Chittenden Country Transportation Authority)

Burlington, VT

Successfully supported Maintenance Manager and Department. Experience includes-payroll;

processing time off requests; repair order review; report generation/analysis; purchasing; budget;

invoice processing; capital purchasing; warranty; MSDS record keeping; mechanic computer training;

Community Right-to-Know Program submissions; PM compliance; scheduled maintenance and

maintained working relationship with personnel at offsite locations; facility maintenance program;

ensuring compliance with FTA regulations.

EducatlonAraining

Enhancing YourTAM Program with Lifecycle Management, NTI, 2022

Reasonable Suspicion Determination Training, RLS, 2022

Project Management for Transit Professionals, NTI, 2021

Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems, NTI, 2018

High School Diploma, 2004

Fair.Haven Union HS - Fair Haven, VT



jbilby@advancetransit.com Jason Bilby

SUMMARY

•  Budgeting, Forecasting, and Modeling • Team leadership and development

•  Executive level communication and • Internal and external partnership
'  support expertise

•  Business strategy analysis and • System implementation and best
development practices

EXPERIENCE

Advance Transit, Inc., Wilder, VT

Controller (Current Position)

C&S Wholesale Grocers, Keene, NH

Finance Supervisor (1 year)

•  Supervised three accountants responsible for inventory valuation and tracking.
• Managed processes for dead & excess, cash discount, and salvage activities.
•  Leveraged technologies to streamline processes for tracking key performance indicators.

Powers Guaranteed Services, Swanzey, NH

General Manager (4 years)

•  Provided organizational leadership, management, and accountability.
•  Created and implemented strategies for business growth for a $12M organization.

Crossway Church, Keene, NH

Pastoral Assistant of Administration (2 years)

•  Administered payroll, payroll taxes, W-2's, 1099's, budgets, and financials in

QuickBooks.

•  Directed implementation and development of a church management system.
•  Lead quarterly meetings and financial updates to members and organizational leadership.
•  Instructed and developed leadership capabilities for effective mission execution.

C&S Wholesale Grocers, Keene, NH

Finance Supervisor / Risk Management Analyst / Sr. H/R Analyst (5 years 10 months)
•  Supervised two accountants responsible for $50M+ in payroll taxes, health and liability

insurance.

• Developed procedures for quantifying, financing, insuring, mitigating, and managing
risks.

•  Leveraged technologies to create an automated process for tracking key performance
indicators.



•  Led executive level presentations to recommend and implement best practices.

Robert Half, Inc., Louisville, KY

Financial Specialist (2 years 4 months)

•  Performed system conversions, business unit divestitures and process control

improvements.

•  Prepared financial analyses, budgets, and forecasts; performed month/year-end close

procedures.

• Managed fixed asset reviews and provided recommendations for valuation and disposal.

Sulzer Chemtech USA, Inc., Tblsa, OK

Accountant (2 years 5 months)

•  Prepared financial analyses, budgets, and forecasts; performed month/year-end close

procedures.

•  Assisted with payroll system integration and annual inventory procedures.

•  Developed an automated credit card reconciliation process for end users to process

expense reports.

Prior Experience

•  District Controller (3 years)

•  Public Accounting (1 year)

TECHNICAL SKILLS

Microsoft OfBce - Excel, Word, PowerPoint, Access (pivot tables, macros, VBA)

Oracle R12 - OBIEE & SQL query (dashboards and ad-hoc analysis)

QuickBooks Online

QuickBooks Business Enterprise

Hyperion

EDUCATION

Northeastern State University, BBA Accounting



Trish Palao
tpalao(2>advancetransit.com

EXPERIENCE

Advance Transit // Director of Marketing and Development
JUNE2022-PRESENT// NORWICH.VT

Develop and lead marketing, communications, and fundraising strategies
through data-driven research. Integrated marketing initiatives, and
community partnerships and engagement

•  Strengthen brand identity through development of brand guidelines,
branded collateral, and communication templates. Redesigns include bus

stop and shelter signage. collateral, and donor engagement tools.

•  Expand digital presence through digital communications program and
growing engagement on social media platforms.

•  Lead the development and implementation of fundraising strategies to

secure funding from various sources including foundations, donors,
corporate partners, and grants.

•  Secure grant funding to support various mission-driven objectives.
Awarded initiatives Include the development of a suite of rider resources

and an extensive campaign to promote expanded services.

•  Spearhead community outreach and cultivate community partnerships to
support efforts and improve brand awareness.

•  Foster positive relationships with the Board of Directors, working closely
together to align strategic goals and ensure transparent governance.

•  Serve as Title VI Officer; Equal Employment Opportunity Officer.

Montshire Museum of Science // Marketing and

Communications Manager

JUNE 2017-MAY 2022 // NORWICH. VT

Advanced marketing and communications program through integrated
marketing efforts and interdepartmental collaboration, supporting
fundraising. Increasing revenue, and strengthening community engagement

Spearheaded rebranding rollout, through targeted efforts, including
website overhaul, collateral and signage update, and development of
brand guidelines and efficient workflows.

Communicated impact with key stakeholders through publications (eg.
annual report), social media, direct marketing, and media campaigns..

Supported fundraising efforts, including year-end appeals and marketing
of the yearly benefit event, which raised up to $200,000+ annually.

Strengthened visitor engagement through partnerships and programs,
increasing attendance by 60%.

Managed data collection and review of visitorship, membership, website,
and digital marketing metrics; Included analyzing performance data and
managing annual visitor surveys. Uncovered that 88% of visitors use email
as primary source of information, leading to a 50% increase in email sends.

SUMMARY

Mission-driven communications

strategist and impact storyteller with

20+ years' experience developing

initiatives and programs that strengthen

organizations' brands, communicate their

values, support their missions, and

advance work to empower communities.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Board Member, CraftStudles // White River

Junction, VT (September 2023—Present)

Support efforts to spark creativity and

community connections through

fundraising and engagement initiatives.

Board Member, Friends of the Morrill

Homestead // Stratford, VT

(June 2023—Present)

Work with the Vermont Division for

Historic Preservation to foster a greater

awareness of the legacy of Senator Justin

Morrill and to preserve this National

Historic Landmark and State Historic Site.

Board Member (Vice Chair), Vermont

Attractions Association // Barre, VT

(October 2017-MaY 2022)

Collaborate with member organizations in

statewide trade association, aimed at

enhancing Vermont tourism industry.

Business Representative, Norwich

Business Council // Norwich, VT

(September 2017—July 2020)

Worked with business association to plan

community events and forge partnerships.

Communications Coordinator,

Town House Forum // Strafford, VT

(March 2015 - August 2019)

Developed logo, brand, and marketing

strategies for annual talk series, including

website redesign. Past speakers include

Arthur Miller. John Sayles, Alison Bechdel,

and Governor Madeleine Kunin.



•  Co-led content strategy and development for virtual learning series

Montshire at Home, which resulted in 80+ downloadable worksheets, an

increase in video content, and a YouTube subscriber growth of over 50%.

Amalgamated Bank // Assistant Vice President, Marketing
AUGUST2015 - MARCH 2017//NEW YORK, NY

Managed Initiatives across multiple channels through creative development
and art direction during company rebrand, In order to launch products,

support client acquisition, and strengthen client engagement

• Worked with key stakeholders to conduct research and competitive

analysis, and develop briefs to shape campaign messaging and strategies.

•  Maintained project timelines and oversaw creative development with

internal designer and external agency for over 40 pieces annually.

•  Developed new digital communication programs to highlight services and

strengthen client relationships to support overseeing approximately $40
billion In custody and investment assets.

New York University Press // Marketing Manager
OCTOBER 2010 - AUGUST 2015 // NEW YORK, NY

Managed advertising, design, and direct marketing strategies, budgets, and
operations for over 225 books and related products annually.

•  Led integrated direct marketing campaigns, effectively reaching 15,000+

prospects, customers, and wholesalers.

•  Spearheaded branding initiatives, including: establishing brand guidelines

and forming a branding committee: managing overall marketing

operations and website redesign for a collaborative program with
publishing partners (Fordham University Press, Rutgers University Press,

Temple University Press, and the University of Virginia Press).

•  Supervised staff, designers, and vendors in developing content and

creative, producing 150+ advertisements and collateral annually.

Cambridge University Press // Promotions Designer
NOVEMBER 2007 - OCTOBER 2010 // NEWYORK, NY

Designed collateral and support material In collaboration with multiple
departments, resulting In 120+ pieces annually.

•  Led design projects, including print and digital advertisements, brochures,

catalogs, posters, book covers, and digital assets.

•  Developed marketing copy, established design objectives, and

collaborated with marketing, editorial, and production departments.

Cambridge University Press // Marketing Associate
JANUARY 2005 - NOVEMBER 2007 // NEWYORK, NY

Developed and Implemented marketing plans for 200+ products annually.

•  Led marketing initiatives for over 200 products annually; included
advertising, direct marketing, public relations, and trade show presence.

• Worked with multiple departments to define market segments, develop

collateral, and provide marketing support to secure sales and publicity.

PROJECTS

Speaker, Using Design Thinking to Solve

Problems Throughout the Museum {New

England Museum Association Conference)

Speaker, Resilience Exchange Virtual Series:

Attractions {Vermont Tourism Summit)

Annual Impact Report, Montshire

Museum of Science: Publication

management, including copywriting.

design, distribution. Awarded 1st place in

New England Museum Association's 2018

Publication Awards.

EDUCATION

Fordham University, College of

Business Administration

BS in Business Administration

(May 2002)

School of Visual Arts, Division of

Continuing Education

Graphic Design and Fine Arts

(2004-2006)

New York University

School of Professional Studies

Marketing and Design (2011—2015)

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

User Experience Design Workshop

Participant, General Assembly

New York, NY (June—September 2015)

Developed mobile app prototype; included

consumer research, competitive analysis,

and content development.

Business Development Assistant,

Canadian Consulate General, New York,

NY (October 2002—December 2004)

Supported Cultural Trade Commissioner

and Trade Department in promoting

Canadian businesses in NYC market.

SKILLS

Email and web content management:

Blackbaud; Expression Engine. Salesforce

Marketing Cloud, Constant Contact,

Mailchimp. Wordpress. Google Analytics.

Design: Adobe Creative Suite

General office and organization tools:

OfficeSuite, Basecamp, Trello, Slack, Miro.


